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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
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(For the year ended 31 December0 000 000DOOOODODOO

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

RMB’000
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
ooodo 0Oo0OO0o0Oo0 oOOobOoo Oooooo ooooo
Revenue oo 1,782,447 2,406,212 3,097,511 4,150,509 5,011,426
Gross profit oo 437,582 580,594 749,150 988,400 1,049,024
Profit before tax ooooo 281,474 371,533 420,102 626,506 698,913
Profit attributable to owners oooooo
of the Company oooo 216,419 290,850 328,644 490,587 584,269
Basic earnings per share (RMB) ooo0oomoooo 0.363 0.472 0.521 0.752 0.842
Diluted earnings per share (RMB) 00000000000 N/AO DO 0.471 0.521 0.737 0.687
Non-current assets ooooo 359,432 1,440,111 1,697,359 2,834,179 3,792,168
Current assets oooo 1,377,596 1,510,053 2,366,323 3,466,554 4,416,582
Non-current liabilities ooooo 197,072 248,955 577,652 1,323,185 2,276,903
Current liabilities oooo 476,856 1,173,010(09070,)TiEV) TjEB) TiK) TiR) TRIT #) IE70T OI0 TOF A QO OARIE
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
oo

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the Group’s annual results
for the year ended 31 December 2014.

The focus of the PRC photovoltaic application market had been shifting in
2014. The government gave strong support to distributed photovoltaic power
generation. 2014 was also called the first year of the great development
of distributed photovoltaic business in the PRC. Governments at all levels
continued to introduce and improve their industrial policies for distributed
photovoltaic development and attempted to drive the distributed photovoltaic
development as a key renewable energy industry. Leveraging its extensive
experience in the photovoltaic area, the Group followed closely government
policies and catered to market developments, which has produced desirable
results.

As of 31 December 2014, the Group’s overall business maintained
growth. The Group’s turnover recorded a year-on-year growth of 20.7% to
RMB5,011,426,000, while profit attributable to equity holders amounted to
RMB584,269,000, featuring a growth of 19.1% over last year. The Board
recommended distributing a final dividend of HK$0.09 per share.

1. CONTINUOUS GROWTH OF RENEWABLE
ENERGY BUSINESS

Renewable energy business segment with photovoltaic system
integration as its core contributed 61.9% of total revenue, which
has been over 60% for two consecutive years and indicated that
renewable energy business has become a pillar business of the
Group. By leveraging its listing company platform and market
resources accumulated over the years, fully consolidating resources
from the capital market, various links in the photovoltaic industry and
rooftop and actively taking part in regional photovoltaic development
planning, the Group was able to maintain its leading position in the
solar EPC area.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
oo

For energy investment, the Group’s 170.8MW self-developed
distributed photovoltaic power stations and large ground power
stations had been connected to the grid in 2014, which has generated
considerable revenue from power generation. In addition, the Group
also invested in the construction of additional 103MW power stations
in 2014.

In addition to traditional power plant development, the Group also
explored new models for application of solar energy in view of local
conditions. In particular, in central and eastern China, the Group used
wasteland to explore comprehensive development and utilisation of
solar energy, agricultural and tourism resources, and in the wasteland
of western China, an ecological desertification prevention and control
model has formed which combines straw checkerboard, row cover
and steel-structured agricultural greenhouses in photovoltaic power
stations.

Furthermore, the Group’s industrial park in Gansu was formally put
into production in December 2014. With a presence in the vast
northwestern China with extensive resources, the industrial park
will play an important role by engaging in photovoltaic power station
development and equipment manufacturing.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
oo

2. OVERSEAS OPPORTUNITIES OF GREEN Ooboboooooooooo

BUILDING BUSINESS

With years of efforts put in market expansion, the Group has secured
certain sizeable overseas projects in 2014. We hope to gradually
establish our brand image in the overseas market as having a
comprehensive leading advantage in green building.

After becoming a member of United States Green Building Council,
the Group actively provided green building construction consulting
services and finished a number of green building consulting projects.
It continued to develop towards a professional institution on green
building consulting, design and research and development in order to
establish a model of driving design with consulting and driving project
development with design and improve the profitability of its green
building business.

3. NEW BREAKTHROUGHS IN NEW MATERIALS

AREA

Through two years of research and development, the new material
business has built a comprehensive product offering including smart
LCD light adjusting film, smart LCD light adjusting glass and smart
projection screen which can be widely applied in business and public
buildings. In view of positive market feedbacks, our new material
manufacturing facility located in Zhuhai is under expansion, which
will increase the size of new material business through introducing
equipment and expanding production capacity.

4. FUTURE PLANS ON ESTABLISHING BRAND

REPUTATION

The Group will continue to focus on renewable energy business
and strive to establish a pattern of orderly development and mutual
support of renewable energy, energy-saving and environment-
protection and new material business. It will adopt a research and
development model that takes into account specific conditions and
aims to serve production and strengthen influence, actively improve
its green building technology, develop distributed power generation
as a long-term steady market, and drive the market expansion for
and sales of new products through the research and development of
green buildings.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

oo

OVERVIEW

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) recognise the importance of
incorporating elements of good corporate governance in the management
structures and internal control procedures of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) so as to achieve effective accountability. This
report outlines the principles and the code provisions of the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The Directors consider that, for the year
ended 31 December 2014, the Company has applied the principles and
complied with all the applicable code provisions set out in the Code, except
for the deviation from paragraph A.2.1 of the Code as described below in the
section “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” on page 13.

In accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Company
has established an audit committee in compliance with paragraph C.3
of the Code to oversee the financial reporting system and internal control
procedures of the Group so as to ensure compliance with the Listing Rules. It
has also established a nomination committee and a remuneration committee

with defined terms of reference.

The Directors are committed to upholding the corporate governance practices
of the Company to ensure formal and transparent procedures are in place to
protect and maximize the interests of the shareholders of the Company.

Set out below is a detailed discussion of the corporate governance practices
adopted and observed by the Company from the listing date up to the date of
this report (the “Review Period”).

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as the standard for securities transactions by Directors.
The Company has made specific enquiries of all the Directors and all the
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions throughout the year.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of Directors (the “Board”) takes responsibility to oversee all major
matters of the Company, including the formulation and approval of overall
business strategies, internal control and risk management systems, and
supervising and monitoring the performance of the senior management who
are delegated with the authority and responsibility for day-to-day management
and operation of the Company. The Directors have the responsibility to act
objectively in the interests of the Company.

Currently, the Board comprises eight Directors, including three executive
Directors, namely, Mr. LIU Hongwei, who is also the Chairman of the
Company, Mr. SUN Jilin and Mr. XIE Wen, two non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. LI Huizhong and Mr. CAO Zhirong and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon, Mr. WANG Ching,
and Mr. CHENG Jinshu.

The Board has a strong independent element in its composition with over half
of the board members are non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors to ensure that all decisions of the Board are made in the
best interest of the Group’s long-term development.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to the Board committees
including the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) (collectively, the “Board Committees”).
Further details of these committees are set out below on pages 15to 17.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director having
sound board level experience and expertise relevant to the business
operations and development of the Group. The Board is comprised of
members with extensive business, government, regulatory and policy
experience from a variety of backgrounds. There is diversity of nationality,
ethnicity, educational background, functional expertise and experience. A
Board Diversity Policy was adopted by the Board in 2013.
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BOARD MEETINGS

The Company will adopt the practice of holding board meetings regularly
for at least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Ad-hoc
meetings will also be convened if necessary to discuss the overall strategy as
well as the operation and financial performance of the Group. Notice of board
meeting will be sent to all Directors at least 14 days prior to a regular board
meeting. Reasonable notices will also be given to the directors for ad-hoc
board meetings.

Directors may participate either in person or through electronic means of

communications.

The Company will adopt the practice to provide relevant materials to all
the Directors relating to the matters brought before the meetings. All the
Directors will be provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties,
and, upon reasonable request, the Directors will be able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses. All Directors will have the opportunity to include matters in the
agenda for Board meetings.

Prior notice convening the Board meeting was dispatched to the Directors
setting out the matters to be discussed. At the meeting, the Directors were
provided with relevant documents to be discussed and approved. The
company secretary of the Company is responsible for keeping minutes of the
Board meetings.

Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial shareholder of the
Company or a Director arise, the matter will be discussed in a physical Board
meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by a written resolution. Independent
non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest will be present at meetings
dealing with such conflict issues.

An updated list of the Directors identifying the independent non-executive
directors and the roles and functions of the Directors is maintained on the
website of the Company and the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

During the reporting period, the Board held a total of 4 board meetings. The
attendance of individual Directors at the board meetings and annual general
meeting are set out below:
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Board Meetings ooooo

A endance

oooog

Name of Diec o s Ann al Gene al Mee ing Boa d Mee ing
oooog oooooo ooooo
Eec ieDiecos oooag
Mr. LIU Hongwei gpoogo 1/1 4/4
Mr. SUN Jinli ooooo 0/1 4/4
Mr. XIE Wen ooooo 0/1 4/4
Non-e ec ieDiecos ooooo
Mr. LI Huizhong gopoooo 0/1 4/4
Mr. CAO Zhirong gpoooo 0/1 4/4
Inde _enden Non-e ec ieDiecos gopbooogo
Dr. WANG Ching goooo 1/1 4/4
Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon ooooa 0/1 414
Mr. CHENG Jinshu goooo 0/1 4/4
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Pursuant to the Code Provision A.6.5 of the Code, all Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. During the Year, all Directors had participated
in appropriate continuous professional development activities by ways
of attending training and/or reading materials relevant to the Company’s
business or to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

The company secretary of the Company maintains records of training
attended by the Directors. The training attended by each Director during the

Year is tabulated as follows:

Training Records

oooo

OoooooOoAeSOOOODDOOOODOD
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goooooobooooboobooog
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Name T,y‘ of - ainings Tainingma es
00 ‘ oooo oooo
(Note 1) (Note 2)
odoilgd ooo2d
Eec ieDiecos gooo
Mr. LIU Hongwei (Chairman) oooowooo a, b i, i, i, iv
Mr. SUN Jinli ooooo a, b i, i, i, iv
Mr. XIE Wen goooo a, b i, i, i, iv
Non-E ec ieDiecos goooo
Mr. LI Huizhong ooooad a, b i, i, i, iv
Mr. CAO Zhirong ogoooad a, b i, i, i, iv
Inde _enden Non-E ec ieDiecos opbooooo
Dr. WANG Ching goooo a, b i, i, i, iv
Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon goooo a, b i, i, iii, iv
Mr. CHENG Jinshu ooooo a, b i, i, i, iv

Note 1: RREELO

a attending seminar or training session a oooooooooo

b self-development and updates relating to general economy, business b goobocOooOooboOoobocOooboOoooo
development, director’s duties and responsibilities, etc. I R o o o

Note 2: [mRmp2ln|

i corporate governance i oodo

ii regulatory compliance ii goodo

iii finance iii oo

iv management and operation

iv BN EHER
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Liu Hongwei, the Chairman of the Group, is responsible for the leadership
and effective running of the Board, ensuring that all material issues are
decided by the Board in a conducive manner. Mr. Liu Hongwei is also
responsible for running the Group’s business and effective implementation
of the strategies of the Group. The Company is aware of the requirement
under paragraph A.2.1 of the Code that the roles of chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separated and should not be performed by the
same individual. Nevertheless, the Board considers that the combination of
the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer will not impair the balance
of power and authority between the Board and the management of the
Company as the Board will meet regularly to consider major matters affecting
the operations of the Group. The Board is of the view that this structure
provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership, which can facilitate
the formulation and implementation of its strategies and decisions and enable
it to grasp business opportunities and react to changes efficiently. Moreover,
the Board considers that the sufficient measures have been taken and it will
not impair the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management. As such, it is beneficial to the business prospects of the Group.
Therefore Mr. Liu Hongwei is performing the roles of both Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All independent non-executive Directors of the Company possess a wealth
of professional and industry expertise and management experience and
have provided their professional advices to the Board. They have played a
significant role in the Board by virtue of their independent judgment and
their views carry significant weight in the Board’s decision. In particular, they
bring an impartial view on issues of the Company’s strategy, performance and
control. The Board also considers that independent non-executive Directors
provide independent advice on the Company’s business strategy, results and
management so that all interests of shareholders of the Company are taken
into consideration, and the interests of the Company and its shareholders
are taken into account in all business decisions. The Company has received
the annual confirmation signed by each independent non-executive Director
to acknowledge their respective independence. After prudent enquiry, the
Board is of the view that each of Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon, Mr. WANG Ching,
and Mr. CHENG Jinshu maintains the independence as required by Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules.
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All independent non-executive Directors of the Company will review, on an
annual basis, any decisions in relation to new business opportunities referred
to the Company. As at the date of this report, there is no new business
opportunity introduced to the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify
its Directors and officers in respect of legal actions against the Directors.
Throughout 2014, no claim had been made against the Directors and the
officers of the Company.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors of the Company has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a specific term of three years commencing
13 January 2012, and will be automatically renewed for another three years
upon expiry.

Mr. Cao Zhirong and Li Huizhong, the non-executive Directors of the
Company, had entered into service contracts with the Company for a specific
term of three years from 1 September 2012 and 1 July 2011, respectively.
Their service contracts will be automatically renewed for another three years
upon expiry.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors were appointed for a term
of three years from 19 December 2008. Their service contracts will be
automatically renewed for another three years upon expiry.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years and in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
A di Commi ee

The Company established the Audit Committee pursuant to a resolution of
the Directors passed on 19 December 2008 in compliance with Rules 3.21 to
3.23 of the Listing Rules and paragraph C.3 of the Code. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee are to oversee the financial reporting process and
internal control procedure of the Group, to review the financial information
of the Group and to consider issues relating to the external auditor. The
Audit Committee consists of the three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Dr. Wang Ching, Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon and Mr. Cheng Jinshu,
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon is the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee has reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the six months ended 30 June 2014 and for the year ended 31 December
2014, the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and the
system of internal control.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Audit Committee held
2 meetings.

The following table shows the attendance of members of the Audit

Committee’s meetings:
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No. of A di Commi ee
mee ings a ended/held:

Diecos: O B E A s E G e ]
EEEHE V[ T e
YICK Wing Fat, Simon (Chairman) BHEHE S G 2/2
WANG Ching [ S0k ] 2/2
CHENG Jinshu ooo 2/2

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform its
duties. Latest terms of reference of the Audit Committee can be viewed on
the website of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.
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Nomina ion Commi ee

The Company established a Nomination Committee pursuant to a resolution
of the Directors passed on 19 December 2008 in compliance with
Recommended Best Practices of paragraph A.5 of the Code. The primary
duties of the Nomination committee include reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board on a regular basis and making recommendations
to the Board regarding any proposed changes. The Nomination Committee
consists of five members, including three independent non-executive
Directors and two executive Directors, namely Mr. Liu Hongwei, Mr. Xie
Wen, Mr. Wang Ching, Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon and Mr. Cheng Jinshu. The
Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Liu Hongwei.

Nomination procedures include identification and acknowledgement of
qualified individuals by the Nomination Committee and review and approval
of such nomination by the Board, The Nomination Committee will evaluate
potential candidates by considering factors such as professional expertise,
relevant experience, personal ethics and integrity.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Nomination Committee held
1 meeting. The following table shows the attendance and members of the
Nomination Committee during the year ended 31 December 2014
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No. of Nomina ion Commi ee
mee ings a ended/held:

Diecos: I 8 e e o o e e
EEEHE VB [ T e
LIU Hongwei (Chairman) BHEHE S G T 11
XIE Wen [E]8[m :[x] 11
WANG Ching EHEHD 11
YICK Wing Fat, Simon ooo 1/1
CHENG Jinshu ooo 171

The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform its
duties. The current duties and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are more specifically set out in its latest terms of reference, details of which
can be viewed on the website of the Company and the website of the Stock
Exchange.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) is
responsible for keeping detailed minutes of each meeting of the Board or
the Board committees including any dissenting views expressed by the
Directors, which should be available to all Directors for inspection. He is also
responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures comply with all applicable
laws, rules and regulations and advising the Board on corporate governance
matters. All agenda, relevant materials and document are required to be
sent out at least 3 days prior to the intended dates of the Board meetings or
meetings of the Board committees. It is the responsibility of the Company
Secretary to send the draft minutes of the meetings of the Board or the Board
committees to all Directors for comments within a reasonable time after the
aforesaid meetings. Final versions of minutes of meetings of the Board or the
Board committees are also required to be sent to all Directors for record. All
Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary to
ensure that the Board procedures and all applicable laws are followed.

Moreover, the Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors
updated on the Listing Rules, regulatory requirements, as well as internal
codes of conduct of the Company.

During the Year, the Company Secretary had confirmed that he had taken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Financial Re, o ing

The Board, supported by the Finance Department, is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company and the Group. In
the preparation of financial statements, International Financial Reporting
Standards have been adopted and the appropriate accounting policies,
disclosure requirements under Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the
Listing Rules have been consistently used and applied. The Board aims to
present a clear and balanced assessment of the Group’s performance in the
annual and interim reports to the shareholders of the Company, and make
appropriate disclosure and announcements in a timely manner.
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A dio’s Rem ne aion

The audit committee of the Board is responsible for making recommendation
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
authorized external auditors and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditors, and any questions of resignation or
dismissal of the external auditors. The Company engaged Ernst & Young as
its external auditors, and also engaged Ernst & Young in connection with the
comfort letters and other assistance in respect of the issue of senior notes
and convertible bonds. Details of the fees paid/payable to Ernst & Young
during the year ended 31 December 2014 are as follows:
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Audit service gooag RMB6,760,000
000 6,760,0000
Non-audit services goooad

— Professional services for: -000000ooooo
issue of convertible bonds goooooo RMB655,000
000 655,0000
issue of senior notes gooooo RMB655,000
000 655,0000
— Tax service -gooog HK$104,000
104,0000 O

In e nal con- ol

The Group appointed Shinewing Risk Services Limited to review the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system for the year ended
31 December 2014. The Group is also in the process of improving and
establishing the internal control manual to further enhance its internal control
system.

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board for the
Group’s system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness, and,
in particular, considering the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and the training programmes and budget. The Board will conduct periodic
review on the progress of the improvement and endeavor to enhance the
internal control measures of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2014, which were prepared in
accordance with applicable accounting standards.
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The reporting responsibility of the external auditor of the Company on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group are set out in the independent
auditor’s report on pages 66 to 67.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Comm nica ion .4 h Sha eholde s

The Board recognises the importance of effective communications with
shareholders and continues to act in the best interests of the Company and
its shareholders. The Company keeps shareholders and investors informed of
its business performance and strategies by adopting a transparent and timely
disclosure policy which complies with the Listing Rules and provides all
shareholders equal access to such information. The Company also publishes
all documents on the Company’s website.

The annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) also provides a
forum for the Board to dialogue and interact with the Shareholders directly.
The Directors and the committee members are available to answer questions
during the AGM. Notice of AGM, annual report, financial statements and
related papers were posted to shareholders of the Company for their
consideration at least 20 clear business days prior to the AGM.

AGM proceedings of the Company are continually reviewed in the light of
corporate governance best practices.

Sha eholde s’ Righ s

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders of the
Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the mandatory disclosure
requirements under Paragraph O of the Code which is effective from 1 April
2012.

(a)  Convening of general meeting on requisition by shareholders

Members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Company’s registered
office in Bermuda at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton,

oo00ooooDooOoO0o0o0oooDoOoOo0o
O000000ec000670000000
ooo

gooog

googooo

oooooooooooooooobooooo
ooooooDooooOooooooooooo
oooooooooooooooocoooo
ooooooooooooooooooao
oooooooooOo0oooooooooo
ooooooooooOoooooobcoooo
od

obooocOooo0ooO0OmooooooOa
oooooooooooooooobooooo
o00ooooOoOoOoO0o00oooDoOoOo0o
oooooooocooooooocoooo
oOoooOoooOoOooOoOooOoOooon?20
oo00ooooDooOo0o0o0oooDooo

ooooooooooooooooooono
oooo

googno

oooooooooOooomoooooo
Oo00o0ooooOoooOoOoOoOoOoOoOoon
oo0oooooooooo

(@ OOoOooooOooooo

= L 1 {5 e o o
I O P - e R e o 2 e Y O R S S
O-0-0-CeEEgn 5 EREEESEE 5 0
L, 02 [0 < [ sl T S T = 2 ] - ] (] (] (]
0 O Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,



oooooooOoObOoOoocoOoOooOoOooOoOoooa

21

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

oo

(b)

HM11, Bermuda and its principal office in Hong Kong at Unit 3108,
31/F, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught
Road Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board or the Secretary
of the Company, to require a special general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within three (3) months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions
of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a Shareholders’ meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, either any number
of the shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders of the Company, or not less
than one hundred of such shareholders, can request the Company
in writing to (a) give to shareholders entitled to receive notice of the
next general meeting notice of any resolution which may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate
to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting any
statement of not more than one thousand words with respect to
the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business
to be dealt with at that meeting. The requisition signed by all the
requisitionists must be deposited at the Company’s registered office
in Bermuda at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM11,
Bermuda and its principal office in Hong Kong at Unit 3108, 31/F,
China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board on the secretary of
the Company, with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
relevant expenses and not less than six weeks before the meeting in
case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not less than
one week before the meeting in the case of any other requisition.
Provided that if an annual general meeting is called for a date six
weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the requisition
though not deposited within the time required shall be deemed to have
been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

(b)
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(c)  Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board in writing to
the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the
Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office
specifying the objects of the enquiries.

INVESTOR RELATION

During the period under review, there had been no significant change in the
Company'’s constitutional documents.

GOING CONCERN

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ENHANCEMENT

The Company has been introducing, and continues to introduce, measures to
comply with the former and revised Corporate Governance Code. Enhancing
corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying and complying with
the Corporate Governance Code of the Stock Exchange but about promoting
and developing an ethical and healthy corporate culture. During the period
under review, the Board considered the following corporate governance
matters:

(i) review of the compliance with the Code; and

(i) review of the effectiveness of the internal controls and risk management
systems of the Group through the Audit Committee.

We will continue to review and, where appropriate, improve our current
practices on the basis of our experience, regulatory changes and
developments. Any views and suggestions from our shareholders to promote
and improve our transparency are also welcome.
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Since its inception, the Group has been committed to becoming a green
enterprise model leveraging its advantages and characteristics in the
development of renewable energy business, especially in the field of building
integrated photovoltaic/thermal system and intelligent micro-grid, the Group
also hopes that the advantage of solar energy as a clean energy can be
widely promoted among public. We have embraced our corporate philosophy
of “Giving back to the society” and actively participated in solar energy
related social responsibility projects as we develop our businesses, in order to
promote low-carbon life and harmonious concepts.

SOCIAL CARING

Organized by the labour union, Xiangtan Central Blood Station came to our
Group company in Hunan to receive blood donation in January 2014. Our
staff received medical examination and donated blood in accordance with
strict procedures. For healthy people, blood donation takes only courage and
love, but it means the continuation of life for patients. When the blood reserve
is in tight supply, every healthy one of us is obliged to donate blood so that
life can continue with our love. Our staff has interpreted what contribution is
with their actions and blood.

STAFF TRAINING AND EDUCATION

The Group has been actively practicing “Learning” of its “Singyes Culture”
by encouraging and supporting its staff in continuing education in the hope
that it will cultivate talents for the positions of the Company while providing a
platform for the study and growth of its staff.

In order to effectively improve the skills and comprehensive quality of our
employees, the Group held relevant academic credential education programs
together with universities and colleges across China. In addition, the
employee benefit program of the Group expressly provides that any employee
who enrolle on any on-the-job training organised by the Group will be entitled
to reimbursement by the Company for part or all of the tuition of the course;
and that any employee who enroll on and successfully finish at his own
cost any course organised by external educational institutions will entitled to
reimbursement by the Company for half of such cost.
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In April 2014, the 2014 Xidian University Online Education Class jointly held
by the Group and Zhuhai Training Centre formally commenced. A total of 29
employees of the Group passed the entrance test and received the admission
notice. The courses provided at the class cover subjects such as electric
power engineering management, mechanical and electrical integration and
project management. Furthermore, 6 employees at the research department
of the Group also received the admission notice issued by Hefei University of
Technology for electrical engineering master class.

COLLEGE-INDUSTRY COLLABORATION

The Group has been attaching great importance to its cooperation with
schools. In addition to actively facilitating the integration of production,
learning and research, we also give strong support to social practice and
teaching activities arranged by schools. Each year, we provide opportunities
for visits and practices and hold seminars on the use of renewable energy
for students from primary and secondary schools as well as universities and
colleges, which has played an important role in cultivating and expanding the
perspectives and practical skills of students.

Since February 2012, the Group started to build an internship base in
collaboration with BNU-HKBU United International College (hereinafter
referred to as “UIC”). In May 2014, the teachers and students of the
environmental science department of UIC came to the Company for visit
and study. The students watched on-site demonstrations of products,
technological achievements and project cases of the Group for green
building and renewable energy and obtained an initial understanding of solar
photovoltaic technologies, solar thermal technologies and green buildings.
Roof-top photovoltaic power stations, solar energy water-heating systems and
solar roasting rooms left the students strong impressions. Vivid cases have
enlightened the students of the environmental science department of UIC on
how to improve ecological environment and expand the uses of renewable

energy.

In addition, students of Buddhist Kok Kwong Secondary School visited the
Group on 22 May 2014. They got hands-on experience of electricity and hot
water generated by solar energy and developed great interest in the use of
solar energy.
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SPONSORSHIP OF PHOTOVOLTAIC STREET LAMP
PROJECT

Active participation in various public welfare and seeking the parallel
development of its economic performance and social benefits have been
a growth driver for the Group’s long-term development. The Company
will continue to actively participate in public welfare and strive to make

contributions to development in the western parts in mainland.

In early June this year, 100 sets of solar energy street lamps donated by the
Group to Jinggangshan, a red revolutionary area, had been fully installed and
put to use.

On 19 June 2014, representatives of the Group attended the lightening
donation project communication meeting organised by Jinggangshan
Municipal Government. Local government officials expressed their
appreciations for the Group’s donation to the Jinggangshan solar energy
street lamp project and welcomed the Group’s continuous participation in the
construction of a green Jinggangshan.

In August 2014, the photovoltaic street lamp project sponsored by the Group
was extended to Mengcun Township, Lantian County, Shaanxi Province. Mr.
Liu Hongwei, Chairman of the Group and some of the Group’s representatives
came to Bailuyuan Mengcun, a renowned demonstration township for the
development of small townships, in the company of local government officials.
They visited construction projects and an agricultural technology park in the
area, received a briefing on the development plan and status of Bailuyuan
Mengcun, and inspected the Mengcun photovoltaic street lamp project
sponsored by the Group. Upon completion of the project, street appearance
of the township has improved and energy-saving and environment protection
has been achieved as expected.

At a subsequent solar energy lightening project results exchange meeting,
government officials of Lantian County spoke highly of such model of “industry
supporting agriculture development and enterprises driving township
development” and expressed appreciation for the Group’s support for the
infrastructure development of Mengcun Township by giving the Group a
copper appreciation plague on behalf of local residents.
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PROTECT ENVIRONMENT AND CARE FOR THE
EARTH

In July 2014, the Group launched an environment protection activity for
Banzhang Mountain named “Protect the Environment and Care for the
Earth”. Participating employees of the Group, divided into small groups,
collected and sorted garbage on driveways, sidewalks and mountain
paths, and promoted related environment protection knowledge and the
concept that nothing is trivial when it comes to environment protection to

mountaineers.

The initiative aims to promote and spread environment protection knowledge,
to disseminate environment protection philosophy, to improve the awareness
of environment protection, and to encourage everyone to contribute to the
environment protection cause by starting with daily life and trivial matters.

The Group’s enthusiastic efforts and promotion received attention of the
people in the area. Many expressed their support for environment protection
with their own behaviours and the results were better than expected. Learning
that we organised such activity on our own, cleaners said that Banzhang
Mountain would be cleaner had there been more of such activities.

The activity successfully concluded after four large bags of garbage were
collected and sorted out. It did not last long, but we were able to pass on
our belief to “Protect the Environment and Care for the Earth” to every
participant, and positive results have been produced through interaction and
motivation of more people.

RESOURCES EFFICIENCY

Total consumptions of electricity of our Group in 2014 was 17,044,136
kWh, which implies a total CO2 emission of approximately 1,699 tones and
SO2 emission of 201 tones. As a responsible company, the Group is taking
every measures to reduce the negative impact to the environment. We have
installed 14MW roof-top solar power generation systems on the roof of our
building and plant, the annual electricity output is approximately 14,600,000
KWh, under full operation, it helps to save around 3,797 liters of fuel or 5,258
tones of coal usages, which implies a reduction of 14,561 tones of COz2,
172 tones of SOz and 63 tones of nitrogen oxides emission. It also reduced
emission of 3,973 tones of dust from coal-fired power generation and saved
58,420 liters of water.
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Regarding energy conservation, the Group has actively implemented an
accountability system. The management staff has implemented sufficient
procedures to remind employees of the need for switching off lights and
power sources after work and adopting sensor faucets in some of the office
areas. The Company also employs dedicated support staff to patrol the
company regularly every night in order to make sure that all power sources
are switched off after work.

The Group also encourage electricity communication in order to save paper
usage. The Group has developed its own OA system for company internal

news announcement and staff communication.

ENERGY CONSERVATION AND EMISSION
REDUCTION

As at the end of December 2014, the Group had constructed over 280
domestic and overseas photovoltaic projects with an accumulative power
output exceeding 800MW and an annual electricity output of approximately
842,600,000 kwh. These projects have helped to save 219,076 liters of
fuels or 303,336 tones of standard coals. In other words, it means that the
emission of COz, SOz, and nitrogen oxides will be cut by 840,072 tones, 9,943
tones and 3,623 tones, respectively. Meanwhile, 229,187 tones of dust will
be reduced during the thermal power generation, thus saving about 3,370,400
liters of water.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

We are a professional renewable energy solution provider and building
contractor. Our main businesses are design, fabrication and installation
of conventional curtain walls and solar projects. Solar projects included
Building Integrated Photovoltaic System (“BIPV”) system, roof top solar
system and ground mounted solar system (collectively “Solar EPC”); we also
engaged in the manufacturing and sale of renewable energy goods. Our
BIPV system involves (i) the integration of photovoltaic technology into the
architectural design of buildings and structures and (ii) conversion of solar
energy into electricity for use. Our system allows the electricity generated
from solar panels to be connected to the power grid of a building and the
electricity generated from sun power will be consumed simultaneously.
No extra electricity storage cost is required. In addition, we also engage in
the production and sale of renewable energy goods, including smart grid
system and solar thermal system. In 2011, we also started a new business
called Indium Tin Oxide (“ITO”) business or “New material” business for
the development of high-end curtain wall in future. Leveraging on our track
record and extensive experience in our curtain wall business, we will further
strengthen and develop our renewable energy business in respect of BIPV
systems and renewable energy goods. Apart from the above, we also provide
engineering design services and engage in the sale of curtain wall materials.
Our Group will endeavour to continue our focus on solar business. In the
long run, we will aspire and strive to grow into an enterprise with a focus on
renewable energy business.

FUTURE PLAN AND STRATEGIES
C - ain ,aall and g een b ilding b siness

Despite the unfavourable market environment in the construction industry
in China, the Group still recorded a 21.9% growth in curtain wall and green
building business. The Chinese government implemented various supporting
programs on green buildings. We therefore are strategically shifting our focus
in to green building area so as to explore new business opportunity.

Sola EPC b siness

The Group has firstly entered into the Solar EPC market in China in 2007,
because of the strong support by the Golden Sun Program, our Solar EPC
business recorded a significant growth over the past few years. In 2013, the
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Chinese Government also launched National-wide Feed-in-Tariff Program
(“FIT™) and Distributive Power Program (“DG”). In 2015, the aggregate target
from FIT and DG would be 17.8GW. The Mainland China is currently the
largest solar user in the World and we are confident to maintain the leading
position in Solar EPC area.

De ;elo,men of- ene sable ene g, goods and ne;ama e ials

)

Apart from Solar EPC, we also produce different kind of renewable energy
goods.

Renewable energy goods include solar photovoltaic materials and solar
thermal products. Solar thermal products include air-source heat pump, solar
heat collectors and solar heating system. Our long-term strategy is, through
our innovative research and development team, to diversify the application of
solar, and to widen the solar application in different area, like rural application
and irrigation.

Self-De /elo sola ojec s

Apart from being Solar EPC, the Group also develops (to invest and to build)
its own solar projects. In 2014, the Group has developed approximately
103MW of self-developed projects. The Group sold 25MW of solar projects
to an independent third party inside Mainland China for a consideration
of RMB8&9.7 million, net gain on disposal was RMB35.3 million, and sold
B5MW of income right to an independent third party in Hong Kong for a
consideration of RMB19 million.

As at the end of 2014, the Group had 80MW of ground-mounted solar farms
and 90.8MW of roof-top solar power station under Golder Sun in operation.
Total electricity income, including government subsidy, was approximately
RMB51.6 million. The Group had approximately 274MW of solar projects on
hand as at 31 December 2014.

Up to the date of this report, the Group has approximately 100MW of solar
projects under development and we plan to build not less than 300MW in
this year.
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O/e seas b sinesso.-0 niies

Revenue outside Mainland China accounted for approximately 0.8% of
our total revenue in 2014. The Group has already secured certain sizable
projects in Hong Kong, Macau and some Southeast Asia regions, a significant

increase in overseas business is expected in 2015.

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Re./en e

The following table set out the breakdown of revenue:
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Yea ended 31 Decembe
oooooooDooooo

2014 2013
ooodo ooogo
RMB million RMB million
oooooo gooooog
Curtain walls and green buildings goooooao
— Public work ooodo 335.7 381.3
— Commercial and industrial 0Ooo 1,076.9 900.5
— High-end residential ooogoo 258.2 88.9
1,670.8 1,370.7
Solar EPC 0oogEPC
— Public work Oooogoo 49.7 85.6
— Commercial and industrial Oooag 2,014.7 1,803.3
2,064.4 1,888.9
Total Construction Contracts gooooo 3,735.2 3,259.6
Sale of goods oooog
— Conventional materials [ -z E] 186.3 2209
— Renewable energy goods (03 T e T (T 1,015.6 622.6
— New materials [T 7 44.8 359
Total sale of goods [ 8 ] ] e 1,246.7 879.4
Sale of electricity B EHE! D) 19.7 54
Rendering of design and other services [RS8 ] R R ] 9.8 6.1
Total revenue of{ael 5,011.4 4,150.5
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G oss ~ofi and g oss ~ofi ma gin gooooo
2014 2013
ooooo ooooo
RMB million %  RMB million %
oooooo gooooo

Construction contracts gooo
— Curtain walls and green buildings goooooogo 255.5 15.3 220.2 16.1
— Solar EPC O O0OgdEPC 550.3 26.7 556.7 29.5
805.8 21.6 776.9 23.8

Sale of goods oooo
— Conventional materials Oooogg 31.3 16.8 44.6 20.2
— Renewable energy goods gooooooo 191.6 18.9 154.6 24.8
— New materials oooag 14.5 324 9.5 26.5
237.4 19.0 208.7 23.7
Sale of electricity gooag (1.7) (8.6) 0.2 3.7
Rendering of design and other services ooooooooo 7.5 76.5 2.6 42.6
Total gross profit and gross profit margin gopooooa 1,049.0 20.9 988.4 23.8

S ol
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The Group’s revenue increased by RMB860.9 million or 20.7%, from
RMB4,150.5 million in 2013 to RMB5,011.4 million in 2014. Gross profit of
the Group increased by RMB60.6 million or 6.1%, from RMB988.4 million in
2013 to RMB1,049.0 million in 2014.

1) The Group’s curtain wall and green building business recorded a
growth of RMB300.1 million or 21.9%; gross profit increased by
RMB35.3 million or 16.0%. Gross profit margin dropped slightly to
15.6%. The increase in curtain wall business and green building was
mainly driven by the commercial and residential sector.

Looking forward to 2015, the Group will put more emphasis on
government or infrastructure related projects.

2) The Group’s Solar EPC business grew by RMB175.5 million or 9.3%,
gross profit slightly dropped by RMB6.4 million or 1.1%. Gross profit
margin was 26.7%.

Strong demand is noted in Commercial and industrial sector and
revenue grew by 11.7%. The Mainland China government continue to
give strong support to both Distributed Power (“DG”) and feed-in-tariff
(“FIT"), also because of the cheaper material supply, investment return
in solar system is more attractive than before and hence demand from
commercial and industrial are strong.
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Sale of goods comprise sale of conventional materials; sale of
renewable energy goods and sale of new materials. Sale of goods
increased by RMB367.3 million or 41.8%, the main driver was the sale
of renewable energy goods and new materials.

Sale of conventional materials dropped by RMB34.6 million or
15.7% during the year, the Group is shifting focus to more profitable
renewable energy goods and solar related business and hence sale
from curtain wall business drop.

For sale of renewable energy goods, nearly 63.1% of revenue growth
is noted because of the significant increase in demand. On the other
hand, gross profit increased by RMB37.0 million or 23.9%, gross profit
margin in 2014 was 18.9% (2013: 24.8%). The government has just
finalized the DG policy in September 2014, majority of our products
sale during the year were targeted to solar farm and therefore lower
margin was noted.

Outlook for new material business remains positive, revenue grew by
RMB8.9 million or 24.8%, gross profit margin during the year was
32.4% (2013: 26.5%).

3)
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Re /en e and ofi con- ib

ion f om diffe en b siness sec o0 s: O00oO0oooOooooooao

Revenue split oooo
2014 2013
gooono goooono
RMB million % RMB million %
gooooo gopoooo

Conventional business! googt 1,866.9 37.2 1,597.7 38.5
Renewable energy business? goooooao? 3,099.7 61.9 2,516.9 60.6
New material business gpoogo 44.8 0.9 359 0.9
5,011.4 100 4,150.5 100

Profit split ooon

2014 2013
gooono googoo
RMB million %  RMB million %
oogoooo gooooo
Conventional business! oooot 294.3 28.0 267.4 27.1
Renewable energy business? gpoooooo? 740.2 70.6 7115 72.0
New material business gpoooo 14.5 1.4 9.5 0.9
1,049.0 100.0 988.4 100.0
& Included curtain wall and green building construction contracts, sale of L goOooOooOooOoocOooOoDOoDoOoodg
conventional materials and rendering of design and other services. ooooooogoog
e Included Solar EPC construction contracts, sale of renewable energy goods and 2 Oo0oooEpCO0OOOOOODOOOOn
sale of electricity. L,GREO O O
0 he income and gains El [0 EE)j O

Other income and gains mainly represented recognition of deferred income, ] [0 (e o T T e 0 S T [T 90 (21, [ - [

receipt of government subsidy and interest income from banks. The increase L1500 O vislm(lel] Mnsaleial 5k G5 ERERE B0 O
was mainly because RMB131.2 million (2013: RMB48.1 million) of deferred 1 T PR3- T = e e e o )

income was recognised in respect of the selling of solar assets.
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Selling and dis- ib ion e -“enses

Selling and distribution expenses increased by RMB13.3 million or 17.6%.
The increase in selling and distribution expense was mainly caused by the
increase in staff costs, and other business related expenses. The increase
in staff costs was because of the increase in salary and bonus. The levels of
changes in other items were consistent with our business growth.

Adminis- a i /e e enses

Administrative expenses increased by RMB51.8 million or 23.7%. The
increase in administrative expenses was again mainly driven by the increase
in staff costs, depreciation, research expense and other business related
expenses.

O he e “enses

Other expenses increased by RMB67.9 million comparing with 2013. The
increase was mainly because of the RMB72.7 million (2013: RMB28.5
million) loss on selling of 256MW (2013: 15MW) solar systems, RMB10.1
million of issue expenses of convertible bonds and RMB3.0 million of fair
value loss on derivative financial instruments.

Finance cos s

The Group’s finance costs increased by RMB127.0 million. The increase in
finance costs was because of the increase in bank and other loans (including
bank advances for discounted bills), interest incurred on convertible bonds
and senior notes issued in Hong Kong, and the penalty on early repayment of
a syndication loan.

googoooo

0000000000000 13,300,00000
7600000000000 0OOOOOO
oo0o0o0oooO0oOoocoOoOooOoOoooa
oooooooooooooooooooo
0o

goood

OOOOQO0OOAQOODOaOobslseooo000 O
237%0000000000000000
O0o0ooooDoOooO0oO0oooooooooo
ooad

googd

000000000000 O0O00000
67,000,0000 0000000000000
250 00000015000000000
000000 7270000000 0000000
00 28,500,0000 0000000000
0010,100,000000000000000
000000 3,000,00000

good

O0o0ooooooooo 127,000,00000
I e ) o e T 0 I T
BF B A T i e e 8 e e e B A - B
T Y o ] e i 2 e s G
[=T =T R (51 e R o T e



36

China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited Ann al Re_o 2014

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ooooogog

Income a ooa

Income tax included RMB125.1 million of taxation charge and RMB11.0 000000000000 125,100,00000
million of deferred tax credit. J00O0o00oog11,000,00000

Deferred tax credit of RMB11.0 million (2013: RMB3.2 million) has been oooopooOoooOooooooooo
recorded mainly in respect of tax loss, fair value adjustment on retention Jo0oDO0ooO0ooDOooOooDOooao
receivables and government grants. In 2013, deferred tax also included 11,000,000 000 O00DOO0ODO 3,200,000
RMB28.4 million deferred tax charge on provision for dividend withholding 0Mmoooooooooooooooog
tax based on 5% of net profits on operating subsidiaries of the Group located 000o00oDoDoooooooooobs%n
inside Mainland China. goooooOoooOooboOooooooo

28,400,0000 O

Srongcr-ren-aio gpoooooa

The current ratio being current assets over current liabilities, was 1.58 as at oo
31 December 2014 (2013: 1.46).

T ade and bills ecei /ables/- ade and bills ,a jables * no /e

oooooool

daf !
)

A 31 Decembe At 31 December
2014 2013
oooooo oooooo
ooooooog oooooodg
T'noe daJs Daf Days
ooo ' 0 0
Trade and bills receivables ooooooooood 143 134
Trade and bills payables 0oooooooooon 117 103

Trade and bills receivables turnover days is calculated based on the average
of the beginning and ending balance of trade and bills receivables, net
of impairment, for the year divided by the revenue during the year and
multiplied by the number of days during the year. Trade and bills receivables
turnover days at 31 December 2014 was 143 days. Trade and bills payables
turnover days is calculated based on the average of the beginning and ending
balance of trade and bills payables for the year divided by the cost of sales
during the year. Trade and bills payables turnover days at 31 December 2014
was 117 days, an improvement is noted when comparing with 2013.
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Lijidijandfmandaheso'ces

v
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The Group’s primary source of funding included receivables from
construction contracts and material sale, as well as revenue from electricity
sale. In order to meet the expanding plan, the Group has completed a few
rounds of fund raising activities during the year.

In August 2014, the Group has issued a RMB930 million USD settled
convertible bonds (the “CB”) which have been listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 5790). The CB bears interest at 5% per annum and convertible
into the shares of the Company, details of which has been set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 17 July 2014 and 8 August 2014.
The net proceeds of the CB was approximately RMB903 million (USD146
million), as at the date of this report, approximately USD92 million or 63% of
the net proceeds has been used to repay existing banking obligations and the
rest of the proceeds were mainly used in capital expenditure.

In November 2014, The Group has issued a RMB560 million 3 years senior
notes which have been listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 85704).
The senior notes bear interest at 7.875% per annum, details of which has
been set out in the announcements of the Company dated 11 November
2014 and 17 November 2014. The net proceeds of the senior notes were
approximately RMB542 million, of which RMB398 million or 73% has been
used as capital expenditure and the rest was mainly used as operating
expenses as at the date of this report.

The Group’s strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio at a healthy level in
order to support the growth of our business. Gearing ratio, represented by
consolidated net borrowings (being bank and other loans, bank advances
for discounted bills, senior notes and liability component of the Convertible
Bonds, less cash and cash equivalents) to total equity at 31 December 2014
was 64.4% (2013: 25.2%).
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Ca_ialE —endi - es

Capital expenditure of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 was
RMB1,055.1 million, major investment during the year included roof top or
ground mounted solar systems; a new factory premises and a new office and
R&D centre in Zhuhai. Capital expenditure in 2013 was RMB1,292.3 million
and was mainly for construction of self owned solar systems.

Bo- 0.4ings and bank facili ies

The outstanding borrowings comprised bank and other loans of RMB1,379.2
million with effective interest rates ranging from Hong Kong Inter Bank
Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) + 0.95% to HIBOR + 4% for property mortgage loan
and revolving loans in Hong Kong and London Inter Bank Offered Rate + 2.5%
for a short term loan in Hong Kong. Interest rates for domestic loans inside
Mainland China were ranging from 5.04%-9.07%.

Apart from the bank and other borrowings, the Group also raised RMB930
million of CB with coupon rate of 5% per annum and RMB560 million of
senior notes with coupon rate of 7.875% per annum, both of them are
unsecured.

Fo eignc - encvj' isk

)
The Group’s principle businesses are located in the PRC and most of the
transactions are conducted in RMB. Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities
are denominated in RMB, except for that of the overseas subsidiaries which
functional currencies are currencies other than the RMB and certain items
of cash and cash equivalents that are denominated in HK$, US$ and other

currencies.

The Group does not consider that it has any significant exposure to the
risk of fluctuation in the exchange rate between HK$, US$ and RMB as
a reasonable possible change of 5% in RMB against US$ would have no
significant financial impact to the Group’s profit.
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C edi - isk

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade
and other receivables, and other financial assets represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets. Substantially
all of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are held in major financial
institutions located in Mainland China and Hong Kong, which management
believes are of high credit quality.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is
the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

As at the end of the report period, the Group had certain concentration of
credit risk as 12.8% and 42.9% (2013: 22.6% and 41.4%) of the Group’s
trade and bills receivables were due from the Group’s largest customer and
five largest customers, respectively. All of these customers have good credit
quality by taking into account of their credit history, a long-term business
relationship has been established by both parties. The Group has delegated
a team which is responsible for determination of credit limits and monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up actions will be implemented to recover
overdue debts.

Li idi [ sk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity
planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its financial instruments
and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected cash flows from
operations.

The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its ability to maintain a
balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the settlement
from customers and the payment to vendors.
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Di /idend

The Directors of the Company proposed a final dividend of HK$0.09 per
share (2013: HK$0.09 per share). The Company is in rapid expansion stage,
the actual dividend payout ratio in each year will depend on the actual
performance of the Group, the general industry and economic environment.

Clos - e of- egis e of membe s

The register of members will be closed from Thursday, 21 May 2015 to
Wednesday, 27 May 2015, both days inclusive. In order to entitle to the
attendance of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, all
share transfers documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office
in Hong Kong, namely Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Wednesday, 20 May 2015.

The Company’s register of members will be closed from Tuesday, 2 June
2015 to Wednesday, 3 June 2015 (both days inclusive), during which period
no transfer of shares of the Company will be effected. In order to qualify for
the proposed final dividend, all duly completed transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrars and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at Level 22 Hopewell Centre 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 1 June 2015.

Cheques for final dividend (subject to approval in the annual general meeting
mentioned above) will be dispatched to the shareholders of the Company on
or before Friday, 10 July 2015.
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Ooooodgog

HUMAN RESOURCES oood

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had about 2,700 employees. Employee ddoDooo0oooooooooooooa
salary and other benefit expenses increased to approximately RMB190.0 270000 0000000000 O0O0OD0
million in 2014 from approximately RMB162.4 million in 2013, which OO0O000000aoilez4o00000000
represented an increase of 17.0%. The Group’s remuneration policies 0O0oooooaoiigo0000000000d
are formulated on the performance of individual employees, which will 170%00000000000000000
be reviewed regularly every year. Apart from provident fund scheme gdd0ooooDoDooooooooooa
(according to the provisions of Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes for Hong JoddopoooOoOo0oooooooon
Kong employees) or the state-managed retirement pension scheme (for doooooooooUoOooooog
Mainland China employees) and medical insurance, discretionary bonus dd0Ddoooooooooooooa
are also awarded to employees according to the assessment of individual dooodooooooooooa
performance.
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The table below sets forth information regarding our Directors:

obooooooboonbo

Name Age Posi ion oo oo oo

Liu Hongwei b1 Chairman and executive Director ooo 510 ooooooo
Sun Jinli b1 Deputy Chairman, and executive Director ooo 510 oooooogoo
Xie Wen 49 Executive Director ooo 490 ooogd

Li Huizhong 65 Non-executive Director ooag 650 ooooo

Cao Zhirong 41 Non-executive Director ooo 410 ooooo

Wang Ching 60 Independent non-executive Director ooo 600 ooooooog
Yick Wing Fat, Simon 57 Independent non-executive Director aoag 570 ooooooo
Cheng Jinshu 62 Independent non-executive Director oono 620 oooooog
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS ooaad

Li Hong.eei aged 51, is he Chai man and an e e¢ i/e Dieco of o
Com,an‘j.

He joined our Group since August 1995. He is responsible for the formulation
and execution of our Group’s overall business strategies and policies as well
as the overall management of our Group. Mr. Liu has more than 12 years’
experience in the glass manufacturing sector and more than 16 years’
experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. After obtaining a bachelor’s
degree in engineering in July 1986 from Wuhan Industrial University, now
known as Wuhan University of Technology, majoring in inorganic materials
engineering, Mr. Liu worked at a state-owned glass manufacturing enterprise,
Shaanxi Glass Factory, as a technician until 1989. From 1989 to 1991, Mr.
Liu was the director of production department at another glass manufacturing
enterprise, Zhuhai Glass Factory. From 1991 to 1995, Mr. Liu Hongwei was
the manager of the operation department of Zhuhai Singyes Safety Glass.
In 1995, Zhuhai Singyes Safety Glass jointly established Zhuhai Singyes
Green Building Technology Co., Ltd. (“Zhuhai Singyes”, formerly known as
Zhuhai Singyes Curtain Wall Engineering Co., Ltd) with Zhuhai City Township
Enterprise. Since November 2003, Mr. Liu has been an executive Director
of our Company. From August 1995 to October 2007, Mr. Liu was appointed
as Zhuhai Singyes’s general manager, taking charge of general supervising
and controlling on technologies. In December 2000, Mr. Liu was certified as
a Level 1 Project Manager by the Guangdong Province Construction Bureau.
In January 2001, Mr. Liu was certified as a Senior Engineer in respect of
construction materials by the Guangdong Province Personnel Bureau.
In 2003, Mr. Liu became an adjunct professor of Wuhan University of
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Technology. In August 2004, Mr. Liu was appointed as one of the experts to
the Standardisation Technical Committee of the PRC Ministry of Construction
for Curtain Walls, Doors and Windows. Mr. Liu is currently a member of the
Standing Committee of the Zhuhai Municipal People’s Congress of the PRC
Mr. Liu is also a director of Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. which is the controlling
shareholder of the Company.

S nJinli aged 51, is o+ De, | Chaimanandane e¢ ieDieco.

He joined our Group in August'1995. He is responsible for formulating the
overall sales and marketing strategies of our Group. Mr. Sun has more than
nine years’ experience in the glass manufacturing sector and more than
16 years’ experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. After obtaining
a bachelor’s degree in engineering in July 1986 from Wuhan Industrial
University, now known as Wuhan University of Technology, majoring in
inorganic materials engineering, Mr. Sun worked at Beijing Electronics
Factory as a technician until 1989. From 1989 to 1995, Mr. Sun was the
manager of the production department of Zhuhai Singyes Safety Glass. From
August 1995 to January 2001, Mr. Sun was a project manager of Zhuhai
Singyes, responsible for the development and management of business
projects. From January 2001 to October 2007, Mr. Sun was the deputy
general manager of Zhuhai Singyes, responsible for planning the overall sales
and marketing strategy of Zhuhai Singyes and our Group. Since March 2005,
Mr. Sun has been an executive Director of our Company. Since 2007, Mr. Sun
has also been working as the general manager of Singyes Renewable Energy.
In December 1994, Mr. Sun was certified as an engineer by the Guangdong
Province Zhuhai Designation Reform Committee In March 2002, Mr. Sun was
certified as a Level 1 Project Manager by the PRC Ministry of Construction. In
December 2007, Mr. Sun was registered as a constructor by the Ministry of
Construction. Mr. Sun is also a director of Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. which is
the controlling shareholder of the Company.
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Xie Wen aged 49,iso0- e et i Dieco.

He joined our Group in August 1995. He is responsible for supervision at
our work-sites and research and development of BIPV technologies. Mr.
Xie has more than 16 years’ experience in curtain wall engineering sector.
Mr. Xie graduated from Zhengzhou Textile Engineering College majoring in
mechanical engineering (textile machinery) in 1987. From 1987 to 1994,
Mr. Xie worked at the Equipment Energy Team in Hunan Shaoyang No. 2
Textile Machinery Factory. Mr. Xie joined Zhuhai Singyes in August 1995
as a project manager, responsible for the development and management
of business projects of Zhuhai Singyes. From January 2003 to September
2007, Mr. Xie was the deputy general manager of Zhuhai Singyes, in charge
of technical guidance and supervision at various worksites. In October 2007,
Mr. Xie became the general manager of Zhuhai Singyes. In December 2002,
Mr. Xie was certified as a Level 1 Project Manager by the PRC Ministry of
Construction. In June 2004, Mr. Xie was certified as a senior engineer in
respect of machinery by the Guangdong Province Personnel Bureau. In
February 2008, Mr. Xie was registered as a constructor by the PRC Ministry
of Construction. Mr. Xie is also a director of Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. which
is the controlling shareholder of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Li H i hong, aged 65, was appointed as non-executive director of our
Company on 1 July 2011. Prior to this appointment, he was a vice general
manager of Zhuhai Singyes Green Building Technology Co., Ltd (“Zhuhai
Singyes”), a subsidiary of the Company and retired from his position
in Zhuhai Singyes in year 2010. Mr. Li obtained a bachelor’s degree in
Economics from Heilongjiang Radio and Television University in July 1986.
Prior to joining the Group in year 2000, Mr. Li was the general manager of the
Zhuhai office of Daging Petroleum Administrative Bureau.

Cao Zhi ong aged 41, is our non-executive Director. He joined our group
in September 2009. Currently Mr. Cao is Director of BNP Paribas Equities
(Asia) Limited Shanghai Representative Office. Previously he worked at ICEA
Capital Limited and Wing Lung Finance Limited and has approximately 15
years of experience in investment bank. Mr. Cao obtained a master degree in
business administration from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics.

ooo4900000o00oooo

OOooU0oU0oUOOoOoDoDOoOoCooUOoOo
000000000000 0ooooooo
Jo0ooDOooooOolecoODoOooOooOO
O000000ooooOoOoOoOoooooo
0000000000OO0OO0O00ooooooo
doooooobooooooooooooo
O0o0o0o0ooooooOoooOoooooo
O00000000oO0oOoO0OO0Oooooooo
dooooooboboooooooooooo
O0o000o0oO0oooooOoOoOooOooooo
00000000oOoOoOoO0OOooOooooo
doooooooboooooooooooon
O0o0o00o0oUooooooOoooOooooo
00000000oooOoO0OOooooooo
0ooooooobooooooooooo
o0o0o00oOoOooooooOoOooOooooo
0 0 0O 0 0O Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd.00 O O O

goooog

OO00O0Oes000000000O00C00OO0
oooooooooooooooobocoonoo
o00ooooDoooOo0o0oooDoOoOoOoo
oo oooomoooooooooao
oooooooooooooooocoooo
ooooooDooooOooooooooooo
ooooooooooOoooooocoooo
ooooooooooooo

ooopo4l00000D0O0OOoOCoUOD
000000000O0OO0O0OO0OooOooooon
doddMoomboboooooooooo
0 O O ICEA Capital LimitedD D O OO QOG4d
O B [l s N mly e G R EAE E 1 5 O
O Y {3 o g 3 o S I
[3]



oooooooOoObOoOoocoOoOooOoOooOoOoooa

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

oottt

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wang Ching, aged 60, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of our Company in December 2008. Dr. Wang has near 20 years’
managerial experience in investment banking, securities, treasury and asset
management in the United States, Hong Kong, Taiwan and the PRC. He
was the president of Investment and Proprietary Trading Group for Jih Sun
Financial Holding Co. Ltd. in Taiwan, the managing director of JS Cresvale
Securities International Limited, the managing director of SinoPac Securities
Asia Ltd. in Hong Kong, SEVP of SinoPac Securities Co. Ltd. in Taiwan, the
director of Investment Banking Department at Standard Chartered Bank
Hong Kong and the associate director of Bear Stearns & Co. Inc., New York
and Hong Kong. Dr. Wang currently is the managing director of Shanghai
International Asset Management (HK) Co. Ltd., a licensed corporation
registered with Honk Kong Securities and Futures Commission. He is also
the executive director of Shanghai International Shanghai Growth Investment
Limited, an investment fund company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 770). Dr. Wang obtained his master degree in business administration
from the University of Houston and Ph.D. in finance from Columbia University
in the city of New York.

Yick Wing Fa , Simon, aged 57, is our independent non-executive director
and chairman of the audit committee. Mr. Yick holds a Bachelor’s degree in
Business Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, majoring
in Accounting. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants in
England. Mr. Yick has over 30 years of experience in audit, direct investment,
investment banking and corporate advisory services.

Mr. Yick also serves as an independent non-executive director and chairman
of the audit committee of Shenzhen Neptunus Interlong Bio-technique Co.,
Ltd. and Shanghai International Shanghai Growth Investment Limited (both
are listed on the Stock Exchange).
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Cheng Jinsh |, aged 62, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of our Company in December 2008. Mr. Cheng is the professor
director of Science and Technology Division and director of the Green
Construction Material & Manufacture Project Research Institute of Ministry
of Education of Wuhan University of Technology. He was the vice-dean
of Material Project Department, vice-dean of Material College and vice-
director of Silicate Material Project, key laboratory of the Ministry of
Education of Wuhan University of Technology. Mr. Cheng graduated from
the Hubei Construction Industry College, now known as Wuhan University
of Technology, majoring in glass fiber in September 1976. Mr. Cheng has 34
years’ education and academic research experience relating to construction
materials.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Xiong Shi, aged 51, is the Chief Engineer of our Group. He is responsible
for the research and development of technology. He has more than 12
years’ experience in the glass manufacturing sector and more then 16 years’
experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. Mr. Xiong joined our Group
as a project manager in August 1995. From November 2001, Mr. Xiong
assumed the position of Chief Engineer of Zhuhai Singyes until August 2007.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Xiong was the manager of the quality testing
department at Zhuhai Singyes Safety Glass from 1988 to 1995. Mr. Xiong
also worked as a technical officer at a state-owned glass manufacturing
enterprise, Xiangfan City Glass Factory, from 1986 to 1988. Mr. Xiong was
certified as a Level 1 Project Manager by the PRC Ministry of Construction
in December 2000. Mr. Xiong was certified as a senior engineer in respect
of construction materials by the Guangdong Province Personnel Bureau in
December 2001. Mr. Xiong obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering from
Wuhan Industrial University, now known as Wuhan University of Technology,
majoring in inorganic materials engineering in July 1986. In December
2007, Mr. Xiong was registered as a constructor by the PRC Ministry of
Construction.
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Zh o Jianming, aged 54, is the deputy general manager of Zhuhai Singyes.
He has approximately 14 years’ experience in the curtain wall engineering
sector. He joined our Group as project manager in February 2000. From
January 2001, Mr. Zhuo assumed the position of deputy general manager
of production of Zhuhai Singyes. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Zhuo was
certified as a Level 1 Project Manager by the PRC Ministry of Construction
in March 2002. Mr. Zhuo obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering and
construction from Xi’an Jiaotong University in 1983.

Zhao Feng, aged 49, is the deputy general manager of Zhuhai Singyes since
August 2007. He is also a director of Zhuhai Singyes. He joined our Group
as a sales and marketing manager in December 2002. He has approximately
12 years of experience in the construction sector and approximately 11
years’ experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. Zhao worked as an engineer of Hubei Province Shashi
Construction Materials Scientific Research Institute from 1987 to 1995. Mr.
Zhao was certified as a Senior Engineer in respect of construction materials
by the Guangdong Province Personnel Bureau in December 2004. Mr.
Zhao obtained a bachelor’s degree in Engineering from Wuhan Industrial
University, now known as Wuhan University of Technology, majoring in
materials science in July 1987. Mr. Zhao became the general manager of
Zhuhai Singyes Renewable Energy Co., Ltd, and responsible for managing its

daily operation.

Wang Zhij n, aged 39, is the chief financial officer of our Company since
May 2008. He has 15 years of experience in financial accounting. He joined
Zhuhai Singyes as a financial accountant in September 1998 immediately
after he graduated from Qingdao University. From 2002 to 2006, Mr. Wang
acted as the chief accountant of the accounting department of Zhuhai
Singyes and became the financial manager of Zhuhai Singyes in June 2006.
Mr. Wang qualified as a registered assistant accountant in the PRC in August
1999.
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Zhang Chao, aged 42, is the operating general manager of Zhuhai Singyes.
Mr. Zhang joined our Group in December 2002 as the manager of the
business department of Zhuhai Singyes. He has approximately 12 years of
experience in the construction sector and approximately 11 years’ experience
in the curtain wall engineering sector. Mr. Zhang graduated from Qigihaer
Railway Transportation Employee University majoring in industry and civil
construction in July 1995. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Zhang worked as a
construction budgeteer at Heilongjiang Province Hei He City Railway (Group)
Company from 1995 to 2002. In January 2006, Mr. Zhang was certified as
a constructor by the Guangdong Province Personnel Bureau. Mr. Zhang
was also certified as a National Construction Appraiser by the Construction
Department in 2003 and construction engineer by Zhuhai Personnel Bureau
in 2005. In December 2007, Mr. Zhong was registered as a constructor by
the PRC Ministry of Construction.

L o D o, aged 36, is the chief engineer of Zhuhai Singyes. She joined
our Group as a designer in July 2001. She has approximately 12 years of
experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. Ms. Luo worked as the
vice-director of design institute of Zhuhai Singyes from November 2004 to
December 2006 and the director of design institute from January 2007 to
January 2008. In February 2008 she was appointed as the chief engineer
of Zhuhai Singyes. Ms. Luo was certified as a Class 2 Registered Structural
Engineer by the PRC Ministry of Construction in January 2005. Ms. Luo
was certified as a Plan-Design Engineer by the Zhuhai Personnel Bureau
in February 2008. Ms. Luo obtained a bachelor’s degree in Construction
Engineering from Qingdao Construction Engineery College in July 2001.
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Liang Bing iang, aged 37, is the deputy general manager of Zhuhai Singyes
and responsible for the development of the overseas market. He has more
than 13 years of experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. He joined
our Group as a designer in April 2002. Mr. Liang worked as the director
of design department of Zhuhai Singyes Beijing representative office from
July 2004 to July 2006 and he worked for Zhongshan Shengxing Curtain
Wall Company Ltd from August 2000 to March 2002. In August 2006, he
was appointed as the manager of the photo-electricity business department
of Zhuhai Singyes. In April 2008, he was appointed as the deputy general
manager of Singyes Renewable Energy. Mr. Liang was certified as an
Assistant Engineer by the Zhongshan Personnel Bureau in October 2001.
Mr. Liang was certified as a Construction Design Engineer by the Zhuhai
Personnel Bureau in January 2006. Mr. Liang obtained a bachelor’'s degree
in construction engineering from Tianjin Institute of Urban Construction in
July 2000.

YU Chon Man, aged 37, was appointed as the financial controller, qualified
accountant and company secretary of our Company in June 2008. He
is responsible for financial reporting and general investor affairs of our
Company. He has approximately 16 years of experience in financial
accounting. Mr. Yu is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Prior to joining us, he had approximately seven years of working
experience with international audit firms and was mainly responsible for
financial auditing, internal control reporting and compliance advisory. He
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a bachelor’s
degree (Hons) in accountancy in 2001.

Mr. Yu also serves as an independent non-executive director and chairman of
audit committee of Time2U International Holding Limited (stock code: 1327),
and the independent non-executive director of Winto Group (Holding) Limited
(stock code: 8238). Mr. Yu was an independent non-executive director of Sky
Forever Supply Chain Management Group Limited (stock code: 8047) from
June 2014 to July 2014.

COMPANY SECRETARY

YU Chon Man, is our company secretary. For further details regarding Mr.
Yu, please see the paragraph headed “Senior Management” above.
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The directors (the “Directors”) of China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) have pleasure to present the annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 24 October 2003 as an
exempted company with limited liability. The registered office of the Company
is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.
The Company has established a principal place of business in Hong Kong
at Unit 3108, 31st Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-
200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong, and was registered with the
Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong as an oversea company under Part
Xl of the Companies Ordinance on 29 August 2008. Mr. Yu Chon Man has
been appointed as the authorised representative of the Company for the
acceptance of service of process and notices on behalf of the Company in
Hong Kong.

As the Company is incorporated in the Bermuda, the operation of the
Company is subject to the Companies Law and to its constitution comprising

a memorandum of association and the bye-laws.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is a
professional renewable energy system integrator and building contractor, it is
principally engaged in the design, fabrication and installation of conventional
curtain walls and solar projects. Solar projects included building integrated
photovoltaic (“BIPV”) system, roof top solar system and ground mounted
solar system (collectively “Solar EPC”). The BIPV system involves (i) the
integration of photovoltaic technology into the architectural design of buildings
and structures and (ii) conversion of solar energy into electricity for use. In
addition, the Group also engages in the production and sale of renewable
energy goods, including smart grid system, and solar thermal system. The
Group’s principal operating market is in Mainland China.

Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 17 to the financial statements. There were no significant changes in the
nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group’s top five customers are the main contractors of various public
or commercial BIPV or curtain wall or solar form investors. In aggregate, the
largest and top five customers contributed approximately 20.7% and 44.8%
of the Group’s total revenue in 2014 respectively.

The Group currently outsources part of the construction works for various
sub-contractors in the PRC, as well as sourcing PV penal, aluminium and
glass from suppliers inside the PRC. In 2014, the top five suppliers include
material suppliers and sub-contractors, sub-contracting fees paid or material
purchase to its largest and five largest suppliers were about 21.1% and
41.8% of the Group’s total cost of sale in 2014 respectively.

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these
major suppliers and/or customers.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries which principally affect
the results as at 31 December 2014 are set out in note 17 to the financial
statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profits of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 and the
Company'’s and the Group’s financial positions as at the same date are set out
in the financial statements on pages 68 to 200. The Directors recommend
the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014 of
HK$0.09 per share (2013: HK$0.09 per share).

There was no arrangement under which a shareholder of the Company has
waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserve of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 73 of the annual report and in note 35 to the financial statements
respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Final dividend amounting to RMB49,374,000 was declared by reduction
in distributable reserve. As at 31 December 2014, the Company's reserves
available for distribution calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
applicable law of Bermuda, amounting to RMB10,480,000. An resolution will
be proposed in the forthcoming annual general meeting for the reduction of
share premium of RMB60,000,000 to the distribution reserve for distribution
of final dividends.

INTEREST BEARING BANK LOANS

Particulars of interest bearing bank loans of the Group as at 31 December
2014 are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of acquisitions and other movements in property, plant and equipment
are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 33 to the financial statements. Save for the issue of RMB930
million USD settled convertible bonds and RMB560 million senior notes,
both are listed on the Stock Exchange, during the year, the Company and
its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any listed securities of the
Company. The said convertible bonds will be convertible approximately into
72,070,061 shares in the Company at a conversion price of HK$16.11 per
conversion shares. For details of the convertible bonds and senior notes,
please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 16 July 2014, 8 August
2014, 11 November 2014 and 17 November 2014. The Company also
issued 2,821,000 shares at the exercising price of HK$3.58 per share and
750,000 shares at the exercising price of HK$2.78 per share on exercise of
share options.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last 5 financial years is set out on page 3 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this report were:

Eec ieDiecos
Mr. LIU Hongwei
Mr. SUN Jinli

Mr. XIE Wen

Non-E ec ieDiecos
Mr. LI Huizhong
Mr. CAO Zhirong

Inde enden Non-E ec ieDiecos
Dr. WANG Ching

Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon

Mr. CHENG Jinshu

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Sun Jinli,
Mr. Cao Zhirong and Dr. Wang Ching are required to retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. Each of the above Directors will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy for the Directors and senior management members
of the Group was based on their individual performance as well as market
trends and practices. Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out
in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.
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The emoluments paid to the senior management (excluding the Directors)
during the year ended 31 December 2014 were within the following bands:

oooooboooooooooooooo
oodo0oooooO0oOoooOoooOooao
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N mbe of

Senio Managemen

Bands oo ooooooo

RMB300,001 to RMB600,000 000 300,00100000 600,0000 7
RMB600,001 to RMB1,000,000 0O00e0000100000O 1,000,0000

Total: oo 0o 10

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of 3 years, which is renewable automatically for
successive terms of 3 years each commencing from the day immediately
after the expiry of the then current term of the appointment unless terminated
by not less than 3 months’ notice in writing served by either party. Each of
the non-executive Directors were appointed for a term of three years, which
is renewable automatically for successive terms of 1 year each commencing
from the day next after the expiry of the then current term of the appointment
unless terminated by not less than 2 months’ notice in writing served by either
party. Each of the independent non-executive Directors were appointed for
a term of three years which is terminable by either party by giving the other
party not less than 2 months’ prior notice in writing. None of the Directors
has a service agreement with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

The remuneration of directors are determined by the remuneration committee
of the Company and by reference to the remuneration policies of other
companies in similar capacity and the experience of the directors.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 19 December 2008, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”). Under the Share Option Scheme, the board of
Directors (the “Board”) may at its discretion, offer eligible persons (being any
Director or employee (whether full-time or part-time), consultant or advisors
of the Group who in the sole discretion of the Board has contributed or will
contribute to the Group) (the “Eligible Persons”) who the Board may in its
absolute discretion select to subscribe for such number of Shares as the
Board may determine at a subscription price determined in accordance with
the Share Option Scheme.

P+ _ose of he Sha e O_.ion Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive or reward
to Eligible Persons for their contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote
the interests of, the Group and for such other purposes as the Board may
approve from time to time.

To al n mbe of Sha es a/ailable nde he Sha e O, -ion
Scheme

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme is 15,754,000 shares,
representing 2.27% of the Company’s issued share capital as at the date of
this report. The Company granted 30,816,000 options with exercise price of
HK$3.58 per share on 23 July 2009, 7,200,000 options with exercise price
of HK$2.78 per share on 27 May 2010 and 7,200,000 options with exercise
price of HK$2.68 on 11 October 2011, respectively. Options quantity and
exercise prices were adjusted pursuant to an announcement of the Company
dated 27 July 2012. Please refer to note 34 of the financial statement, for the
year ended 31 December 2014 for details of the options granted.
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Ma im m en i lemen of each Eligible Pa ici an

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) to each Eligible Person in any 12-month period up
to the date of grant shall not exceed 1.0% of the shares in issue as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this 1.0% limit shall
be subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and the approval of our
Shareholders in general meeting with such Eligible Persons and his associate
(as defined in the Listing Rules) abstaining from voting and the number and
terms (including the subscription price) of such options being fixed before
such general meeting and other requirements prescribed under the Listing
Rules from time to time.

Time of e ecise of 0 .ion

There is no general requirement that an option must be held for any
minimum period before it can be exercised but the Board is empowered to
impose at its discretion any such minimum period at the time of grant of any
particular option. The Board is currently unable to determine such minimum
period. The date of grant of any particular option is the date on which the
offer relating to such option is duly accepted by the grantee in accordance
with the Share Option Scheme. An option may be exercised according to the
terms of the Share Option Scheme and the offer in whole or in part by the
grantee (or his personal representatives) before its expiry by giving notice
in writing to our Company stating that the option is to be exercised and the
number of Shares in respect of which it is exercised provided that the number
of Shares shall be equal to the size of a board lot for dealing in Shares on
the Stock Exchange or an integral multiple thereof. Such notice must be
accompanied by a remittance for the full amount of the subscription price for
the Shares in respect of which the notice is given. The period during which
an option may be exercised will be determined by the Board at its absolute
discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than 10 years from
the date of grant. No option may be granted more than 10 years after the
date of approval of the Share Option Scheme. Subject to earlier termination
by the Company in general meeting, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid
and effective for a period of 10 years from the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme by Shareholders by resolution at a general meeting.
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P ice of Sha es

The subscription price for a share in respect of any particular option granted
under the Share Option Scheme (which shall be payable upon exercise of
the option) shall be such price as the Board shall determine, save that such
price must not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer
to grant option, which must be a business day; (ii) the average of the closing
prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of offer to grant
option (provided that the new issue price shall be used as the closing price
for any business day falling within the period before the listing of the shares
where our Company has been listed for less than five business days as at
the date of offer to grant option); and (iii) the nominal value of a Share. A
consideration of RMB1.00 is payable on acceptance of an offer of the grant
of an option.

Remaining life of he Sha e O _«ion Scheme

The Company, by resolution in general meeting, or the Board may at any
time terminate the operation of the Share Option Scheme and in such event
no further option will be offered but in all other respects the provisions of
the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect and options
granted prior to such termination shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the Share Option Scheme.

During the year, 2,821,000 shares were issued at HK$3.58 each on exercise
of share options granted on 23 July 2009 and 750,000 shares were issued at
HK$2.78 each on exercise of share options granted on 27 May 2010. Save
as disclosed above, there was no exercise of any conversion or subscription
rights under any convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights
issued or granted at any time by the Company or any of its subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 December 2014.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 8 August 2014, the Company issued 9,300,000 5% convertible bonds
due 8 August 2019 with a nominal value of RMB930,000,000. There was no
movement in the number of these CB during the year.
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The salient terms and conditions of the CB are as follows: 0000000000 O0O0noooon

(i) Inees-ae (i)

The Company shall pay an interest on the CB at 5.0% per annum.

(ii) Con /e sion ice (ii)

The CB will be convertible into the Company’s ordinary shares at the
initial conversion price of HK$16.11 per share, subject to adjustments.
Amongst others, consolidation, subdivision or reclassification of shares,
capitalisation of profits or reserves, capital distribution, rights issues of
shares or options over shares, rights issues of other securities, issues at
less than the current market price, other issues at less than the current
market price, modification of rights of conversion etc., other offers to
shareholders, change of control and other usual adjustment events.
The conversion price may not be reduced so that the conversion
shares would fall to be issued at a discount to their par value.

(i) Ma -i (iii)

Unless previously redeemed, converted, or purchased and cancelled,
the Company will redeem each of the CB at the US Dollar equivalent of
the RMB principal amount on 8 August 2019.

(i) Redem _.iona he o _ionof he Com_an | (i)

T
)

The Company may:

(1) Upon giving not less than 30 nor more than 60 days’ notice to
the bondholders, at any time after 8 August 2017 but not less
than 14 days prior to the maturity date redeem the bonds in
whole but not in part at a redemption price at the US Dollar
equivalent of the RMB principal amount plus accrued and
unpaid interest to such date; provided that no such redemption
may be made unless the closing price of the shares (translated
into RMB at the RMB:HKS$ fixed rate as set out in the terms and
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()

conditions of the CB) for 20 out of 30 consecutive trading days
ending on a date which is no more than three stock exchange
business immediately prior to the date upon which notice of
such redemption is given, was at least 130%. of the conversion
price then in effect (translated into RMB at the RMB:HK$ fixed
rate as set out in the terms and conditions of the CB); or

(2)  Upon giving not less than 30 nor more than 90 days’ notice
to the bondholders and the Trustee (which notice will be
irrevocable), the Company may at any time redeem all, but not
some only, of the bonds for the time being outstanding at the US
Dollar equivalent of the RMB principal amount plus accrued and
unpaid interest to such date provided that prior to the date of
such notice at least 90%. in RMB principal amount of the bonds
originally issued have already been converted, redeemed or
purchased and cancelled.

Redem iona he o _.ion of he holde s

The Company will, at the option of the holder of any CB, redeem all
or some only of such holder's CB on 8 August 2017 at the US Dollar
equivalent of the RMB principal amount.

Redem .-ion of delis ing 0 change of con- ol

Following the occurrence of a change of control (means when Mr.
Liu Hongwei cease for any reason to be the majority shareholder of
the Company or any other events lead to the significant change of
the ownership structure of that the Company, “Change of Control”)
or delisting of the Company (including suspension of trading of the
Shares on the stock exchange for a period equal to or more than
20 consecutive trading days) (the “Relevant Event”), the holder will
have the right to require the Company to redeem all, or but not some
only, of such holder’s CB at the US Dollar equivalent of the RMB
principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest to the date fixed for
redemption.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

None of the Directors or their respective associate (as defined under the
Listing Rules) was granted by the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, any
rights or options to acquire Shares or debentures during the year ended
31 December 2014.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Save for the issue of RMB930 million USD settled convertible bonds and
RMB560 million senior notes, both are listed on the Stock Exchange, the
Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any listed
securities of the Company during the year.

INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVES OF THE
COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2014, so far as the Directors are aware, the Directors
and chief executives of the Company and their associates had the following
interests in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which (i) were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein; or (iii) were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange:
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Com_an jIname
of associa ed

co .o aion N mbe of A_..0 imae %
Name gooooo Ca, aci | TJ,A of in e es sha es of sha eholding
o0 oooo oo dooo oooo ooooooo
Mr. Liu Hongwei Company Interest of a controlled Long 245,308,078 35.28%
goooo ooo corporation ! oo
oooooot
Company Beneficial interest ? Long 1,380,000 0.20%
ooog ooooe ogd
Sub-total: Long 246,688,078 35.48%
ogad oog
Mr. Sun Jinli Company Beneficial interest 2 Long 1,380,000 0.20%
ooooo ooog oooo? ogd
Mr. Xie Wen Company Beneficial interest 2 Long 1,380,000 0.20%
ooooo ooog oogog? od
Mr. Li Huizhong Company Beneficial interest 2 Long Nil Nil
ooooo ooog oooo? ogd O O
Mr. Wang Ching Company Beneficial interest 2 Long 120,000 0.02%
5[0 ], [T 2] ooo oogog? oo
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, ~ Company Beneficial interest 2 Long 240,000 0.03%
Simon | OHE] Tl B ]2 5[z
[e T [
Mr. Cheng Jinshu Company Beneficial interest ? Long 240,000 0.03%
[ i e BNE]{E BB S og
Notes: oogd

1 These 245,380,078 Shares are held by Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. whose share 1t
capital is 53% owned by Mr. Liu Hongwei. Mr. Liu Hongwei is deemed to be
interested in these Shares by virtue of the SFO.

23 Such interests represent the options of the Company held by the relevant 2

[0 245,380,0780 O O O Strong Eagle Holdings
td.O OO0 00000 D DO O Strong Eagle
Holdings Ltd.0 0 0 53%0 000000 O
(BT T ] ST T T e Pt S R 2 - ol
ooo
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INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2014, so far as the Directors are aware, save as disclosed
above, the persons or corporations (not being a Director or a chief executive
of the Company) who have interest or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO or have otherwise notified to the Company
pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who
were, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal value
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of any other member of the Group and the amount of each
of such persons’ interest in such securities, together with any options in
respect of such capital, were as follows:

Ca, aci j/na ‘e

odooobbugooaog
oooboodad
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oo0b0o0ooO00O00ODoooDbOo0ooOoOoon
oooooooooooooooocoooo
000000000 0O0O0O0O00000
oooO0oO0oOooOoXxvoo203000000
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010%000000000000000O0
oooooooooooooooocoooo
oo0oooooooo

A .0 ima e %

Long/sho ofinees N mbe of sha eholding
Sha eholde LOsi ion ooo of sha es gooad
od oooo oooo oooo ooo
Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. ! Long position Beneficial owner 245,308,078 35.28%
oag gooono
JP Morgan Chase & Co. Long position Beneficial owner 38,528,502 5.54%
oag gooono
Short position Beneficial owner 2,157,000 0.31%

oo goooo

1. Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. is owned by Mr. Liu Hongwei, Mr. Sun Jinli, Mr. Xie
Wen, Mr. Xiong Shi, Mr. Zhuo Jianming and Mr. Li Huizhong, as to 53%, 15%,
11%, 8%, 9% and 4% respectively.

Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd.0 O O O O O O
O000O0oO0ooOoO0oOoooOoOoOoOooOOoO
00000000 O000053001500
110080090 0400000
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NON-COMPETITION

The Directors confirm that they have no interest in any business (apart from
the Group’s business) which competes or is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the Group’s business.

The interested Director shall abstain from the meeting where there is actual
or potential conflict in interest.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company, its holding company, or
any of its fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2014.

No contract of significance in which a Director is or was materially interested,
either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2014.

No contract of significance for the provision of services to the Company or
any of its subsidiaries by our controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended
31 December 2014.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

No transactions as set out in the “Related party transactions” in note 39 to
the financial statements are subject to the reporting, announcement and/or
independent shareholders’ approval under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Byelaws,
or the law of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is
incorporated.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listing Issuer as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Upon
the enquiry made by the Company all Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2014.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report contained in this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on 19 December 2008 with
terms of references adopted on 19 December 2008 in compliance with the
Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The members of the audit
committee are the three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Yick
Wing Fat, Simon, an independent non-executive Director, is the Chairman
of the audit committee. The audit committee is to serve as a focal point for
communication between other directors, the external auditor and the internal
auditor (where an internal audit function exists) of the Company as regards
their duties relating to financial and other reporting, internal controls, external
and internal audits and such other financial and accounting matters as the
Board determines from time to time. The audit committee is to assist the
Board in providing an independent review of the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process, internal control and risk management system of the Group,
overseeing the audit process and performing other duties and responsibilities
as may be assigned by the Board from time to time. The audit committee has
reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2014, including the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group. For further details of the audit committee and other
committees of the Board, please refer to the section headed “Corporate

Governance Report” from pages 8 to 22.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float of not less than 25% of the issued share capital of the Company
pursuant to the Listing Rules and as agreed with the Stock Exchange, based
on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent Non-Executive Directors
to be independent.

AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Company for the year have been audited by
Ernst & Young which will retire, and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

A resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board
LIU Hong i

Chairman
Hong Kong, 30 March 2015
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Ernst & Young
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2846 9888
Fax: +852 2868 4432
www.ey.com

EY =x

To he sha eholde s of China Singjes Sola Technologies Holdings Limi ed
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Singyes Solar
Technologies Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 68 to 200, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2014, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

RKETTEERAT
ERTIR
KSR
RiERE22E

5% +852 2846 9888
{EH: +852 2868 4432
www.ey.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2014, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ens & Yo ng
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2015
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OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Dooooooooood

Year ended 31 December 2014 00 0000000000000 O0O

2014 2013
googo ooogo
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
oo ooooo ooooo
REVENUE oo 4 5,011,426 4,150,509
Cost of sales oooo (3,962,402) (3,162,109)
Gross profit oag 1,049,024 988,400
Other income and gains goooooo 5 233,621 77,481
Selling and distribution expenses goooooo (88,988) (75,664)
Administrative expenses googd (270,689) (218,905)
Other expenses gooag (101,851) (33,902)
Finance costs gooa 6 (237,923) (110,904)
Fair value gains on conversion oooooooo
rights of convertible bonds goooono 29 115,719 -
PROFIT BEFORE TAX goooo 7 698,913 626,506
Income tax expense gooon 10 (114,074) (135,915)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ooogd 584,839 490,591
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS oooooo
Other comprehensive loss not to be gpoooooooa
reclassified to profit or loss in gooooooo
subsequent years: ogoooad
Exchange differences on translation of gpoooooo
financial statements oooo (4,388) (334)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ooooooooo
FOR THE YEAR 580,451 490,257
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Dooooooooood

Year ended 31 December 2014 000000000000 0O0OOOO

2014 2013
ooooo ooooo
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
oo ooooo ooooo
Profit attributable to: goooooooo
Owners of the Company ooooog 11 584,269 490,587
Non-controlling interests goooo 570 4
584,839 490,591
Total comprehensive income attributableto: 0000000000000
Owners of the Company gooooo 579,881 490,253
Non-controlling interests ooogoo 570 4
580,451 490,257
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 0O O0O0O0OO
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF goooo
THE COMPANY oooooo
Basic oo 13 RMB0.842 RMBO0.752
000 o0.8420 Ooooo.7520
Diluted oo 13 RMBO0.687 RMBO0.737

000 0.6870 [@:E. 007737

Details of the dividends proposed for the year are disclosed in note 12 to the 05 oA e ] T s s 4 0 el [ T B R e [ e
financial statements. 120

RN ok
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31 December 2014 000000000000

2014 2013
googo ooogo
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
oo ooooo ooooo
NON-CURRENT ASSETS opoooo
Property, plant and equipment oo0oooooo 14 3,455,071 2,680,214
Prepaid land lease payments gooooooo 15 97,513 94,608
Intangible assets gooo 16 1,594 1,672
Payments in advance gooag 18 193,224 6,769
Deferred tax assets gooooo 31 32,508 21,498
Available-for-sale equity investments oooooooo 19 12,258 29,418
Total non-current assets goooooo 3,792,168 2,834,179
CURRENT ASSETS oooog
Inventories oo 20 114,586 76,629
Construction contracts gooa 21 284,485 117,870
Trade and bills receivables goooooooooo 22 2,192,235 1,801,263
Prepayments, deposits and oooooooo
other receivables gooooo 23 423,532 229,538
Pledged deposits gooad 24 500,327 346,522
Cash and cash equivalents ooooOoooo 24 901,417 894,732
Total current assets oooooo 4,416,582 3,466,554
CURRENT LIABILITIES ooogd
Trade and bills payables ooooooooooo 25 1,284,332 1,292,961
Other payables and accruals ooooooooooo 26 314,354 182,571
Derivative financial instruments gogoooo 27 3,042 -
Bank advances for discounted bills ooooooooo 41(a) 184,378 =
Interest-bearing bank and other loans ooooooooa 28 987,521 869,628
Tax payable 1 ] Y 17,628 33,276
Total current liabilities oooooo 2,791,255 2,378,436
NET CURRENT ASSETS BRSO [OFE 1,625,327 1,088,118
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT [ 81 8 o e R ]
LIABILITIES 5,417,495 3,922,297
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31 December 201400 0000000000

2014 2013
ooooo ooooo
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
oo ooooo ooooo
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES googo
Convertible bonds goooad 29 816,269 -
Senior notes gooad 30 542,822 -
Interest-bearing bank and other loans goooooooag 28 391,679 681,281
Deferred tax liabilities gooooo 31 86,860 86,860
Deferred income gooad 32 439,273 555,044
Total non-current liabilities goooooo 2,276,903 1,323,185
Ne asse s gooa 3,140,592 2,599,112
EQUITY oo
E‘ija'ib able oo.anes gooooo
of he Com.an | oooog
Issued capital ooooo 33 46,466 46,247
Reserves aad 35 3,044,146 2,503,875
Proposed final dividend oooooo 12 49,374 48,954
3,139,986 2,599,076
Non-con- ollinginees s ooooao 36 606 36
Toale i . oooo 3,140,592 2,599,112
Li Hong.eei S nJinli
S e
Director Director
AT 15} (i

o a4
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY
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Year ended 31 December 2014 00 0000000000000 O0O

Attributable to owners of the Company

00000ooo
Difference
arising from
acquistion
Safety of non-
fund controllng
Share Statutory  Enterprise Share suplus— Bxchange interests*  Proposed Non-
Issued  premium fesene  expansion option resene  fluctuation oo final controling
captal  account*  Confributed fund* fund*  reserve® oo resene’  Retained ooo  dividend inferests Total
goo 0o surplus* 0o 0o poo  oooo 0o pofis* 0000 0o Total poa equity
po  ooo* oooo* oooo+ oooot oot 0o opoo* oooot poo+  oooo 0o 0o 0ooo
RMBOOO RMBOOD  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMB'OXO
00000 00000 DOOOOD 00000 00000 OOODO 00000 C0OOOO 00000 0OOOC0 00000 C0OOOCD ODOOO 0OOOO
(note 33) (nofe 35(a)) ~ (note 35(b)) ~ (note 3a(c))  (note 35(d)
00030 0003%@000035b)0 000350 000 3B d0
At1 January 2013 0000000000 42606 399615 7,036 70983 81719 4854 - 3472 1206614 2100 BRI 184600 6842 181912
Profitfor the year goooo - - - - - - - - 490581 - - 490581 4 49051
Other comprehensive loss poooooo
forthe year: ooo
Exchange differences on: pooooooo
Translation of financial tatements pooooa S - - - - - - (334) - - - (334) - (334)
Total comprehensive income for the year DOD0OD00D0D - - - - - - - (334) 490,587 - - 49023 4 490257
Issiue of shares pooo 2454 253900 - - - - - - - - - 2563 - %63
Share isslie expenses pooooo - (1809 - - - - - - - - - (7.849) - (7.849)
Exercise of share options noooo 1187 49870 - - - - - - - - - 51,067 - 51,067
Transfer of share opfion reseneupon 00000000
the exercise of share options poooo - 248 - - - (22,488) - - - - - - - -
Equty-settled share option goooooooo
anangements (note 34) 0003 - - - - - 2112 - - - - - 2112 - 2112
Transfer from retained profits 00ooooo - - - 119 5% - - - (1,797) - - - - -
Capital contribution from non-controling 000000000
shareholders of subsidiaries ooo - - - - - - - - - - - - 116 116
Change in ownership inferests in 00o0ooooooo
subsidiary without loss of control ooooo - - 5 - - - - - - - - 5 () o
Acquistion of non-controling interests 0000000
of a subsidiary ooooo S S S S i 2 S - - (1,079) - (1,079) (6921) (8,000
Transfer to contributed surplus™ goooooo* - (40000) 40,000 - - - - - - - - - - -
Establishment for safefy fund 0ooooooooo
SUrplus reserve - - - - - - 63,002 - (63,002) - - - - -
Utilisation of safety fund surplus reseve 0000000000 = = = - - - (63002 - 63,002 - - - - -
Final 2012 dividend declarednote 12) 000000000000
noola - - (368 - - - - - 391 - (B9 (3684 - (38
Proposed final 2013 dividend (note 12) 00000000000
nooian o e - - - - - - (4894 - B - - -
At 31 December 2013 nooooo
0oooooon 4247 678024 10194 72181 8718 28168 - 318 1682371 1021 - 259076 % 259112
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY
Ooooooo

Year ended 31 December 2014 000000000000 0O0OOOO

Avib able 0oqesof he ComyanJ

o0ooooooo
Diffe ence
aising
fom
a isiion
Safe 1 of non-
fnd con olling
Sha e §a o y Ene sise Shae s'Js  Echange ineess*  Poosed Non-
Issed semim ‘ese & e ansion oson  rese flc aion oo final con’ olling
cajal accon* Conib ed f nd* fnd*  cese gt 00 -ese gt Reained 000 diidend ineess Toal
ooo 0o st )¢t 0o oo goo  oooo oo wfist 0000 0o Toal ooo e‘iJ
go ooo* Dooo* oooo* oooot oot 0o opooo* oOooot poo*  oooo oo 0o oooo
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
poooo ooooo poooo ooooo Ooooo ooooo oOooo OOOOO COOOO *oOCOOD OOOOO COOODO CDOOD OO+oO
(oe33) (noe 35(a)) (noe 35(b) (noe 35(c)) (noe 35(d))
0oodo 000 35()0 000 35(b)0 000 35(c)0 000 35(d)0
At 1 January 2014 0000000000 46247 678024 10194 72181 287718 28168 3138 1682371 1021 48954 2,599,076 36 2,599,112
Profi for the year ooooo 584,269 584,269 5710 584,839
Other comprehensive loss 0ooooooooo
forthe year:
Exchange differences on: gooooooo
Translation of financial statements gooooo (4,388) (4,388) (4,388)
Total comprehensive income for the year 000000000 (4,388) 584,269 579,881 510 580451
Exercise of share options poooo 219 9415 9,634 9,634
Transfer of shere option reseve upon 00000000
the exercise of share options poooo 4430 (4,430)
Equity-settled share option 0oooooooo
arrangements (nofe 34) 000340 1,109 1,109 1,109
Transfer from retained profits 0oooooo 62,111 31,056 (93,167)
Transfer to confrbuted surplus™* ooooooo+ (50,0000 50,000
Establishment for safety fund nooooooooo
surplus reserve 73,448 (73,448)
Utilisation of safety fund surplus reseve 0000000000 (73,448) 73448
Final 2013 dividend declared(note 12) 00000000
000moo 1o (49,714) 48,954 (48,954)  (49,714) (49,714)
Proposed final 2014 dividend (note 12) 0000000
000000120 (49,374) 49,374
At 31 December 2014 nooooo
00ooooo 46466 641869 10480 134292 59834 24,847 (1,250) 2,173,053 1021 49374 3,139,986 606 3,140,592
: These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * (=] o1 Tl s = T B T Tl Tl ol (Bl el R A B = ]

RMB3,044,146,000 (31 December 2013: RMB2,503,875,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

- Pursuant to a resolution passed at the general meeting held on 28 May 2014, an
amount of RMB50,000,000 was transferred from the share premium account
to the contributed surplus. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, a
company may make distributions to its shareholders out of the contributed
surplus under certain circumstances.

* %
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
ooogooog

Year ended 31 December 2014 00 0000000000000 O0O

2014 2013
ooooo ooooo
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
od ooooo ooooo
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ooooooo
ACTIVITIES oooo
Profit before tax goooo 698,913 626,506
Adjustments for: gooooboooogo
Depreciation oo 14 110,910 64,299
Amortisation of prepaid land lease oooobooooon
payments 15 2,183 2,014
Amortisation of intangible assets gpooooo 16 687 797
Impairment loss on intangible assets oooooooo 16 1,063
Impairment loss on property, oooooo
plant and equipment oooooo 14 6,747 -
Impairment loss on trade receivables ooboooooooo 22 278 -
Impairment loss on other receivables gooooooooo 23 1,693 -
Fair value loss on derivative ooooooao
financial instruments goooo 27 3,042 -
Fair value gains on conversion rights of ooooooooo
convertible bonds goooo 29 (115,719) -
Equity-settled share option expense gpbooDboooo 34 1,109 2,112
Loss on disposal of items of property, gooooooo
plant and equipment goooooog 7 72,747 28,505
Gain on disposal of an available-for-sale gooooooogo
equity investment oogd 5 (1,315) =
Unrealised foreign exchange googo
(gains)/losses, net ooomoooo 447 2,318
Interest income gooa ) (23,713) (6,669)
Issue expenses of convertible bonds gobooooooa
charged to profit or loss oooooo 7 10,102 -
Deferred income released to profit or loss goooooooag 5 (155,685) (53,169)
Finance costs gooad 6 237,923 110,904
850,349 778,680
Increase in inventories oood (37,957) (13,245)
Increase in construction contracts gpooooo (166,615) (69,030)
Increase in trade and bills receivables (05 0 e ) 0 1 ) e T A ] T (378,634) (519,819)
Increase in prepayments, deposits BREOHEHEEHE (O
and other receivables 1 e o e o [ (205,537) (125,688)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and [ 1) T ) ] T
bills payables B3 EIE ) (8,629) 777,596
Increase in other payables and accruals EHEHE] EFERENEHE] (O EH Sl 31,351 264779
Income tax paid OLEHELT [ (140,732) (103,624)
Net cash flows (used in)/from {51  1  T  Ar  T
operating activities [FIgE] (56,404) 750,649
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

googood

Year ended 31 December 2014 000000000000 0O0OOOO

2014 2013
ooooo ooooo
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
od ooooog ooooo
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES U0 0O O0OO0OO0OOOO000
Purchase of items of property, googo

plant and equipment ooooooag (1,184,040) (1,331,803)
Purchase of intangible assets gopoooo (609) (400)
Proceeds from disposal of oooooooo

an available-for-sale equity investment oooooo 18,475 -
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, DO OOO0O0O0O0O0O

plant and equipment oooo 99,711 20,000
Receipt from maturity of pledged deposits O OO00O00O0O0O 1,341,101 634,120
Placement of pledged deposits gooooo (1,494,906) (765,822)
Interest received gooad 11,097 6,669
Receipt of government grants goooooooo

related to assets oooag 39,914 378,138
Net cash flows used in investing activities gooooooooa (1,169,257) (1,059,098)
Net cash flows before financing activities gooOooOoobobooo (1,225,661) (308,449)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES D O OOO0OOOO0O00OO
Proceeds from issue of shares oooooooo 256,354
Share issue expenses opooooo (7,849)
Net proceeds from issue of convertible bonds OO 00000000000 902,597 =
Net proceeds from issue of senior notes oooooooooooo 542,327 -
Capital contribution from non-controlling oooOoOoooooooo

shareholders of subsidiaries 116
Increase in an amount due to ooopooooo

a non-controlling shareholder of =32 (2] ] ) e )

a subsidiary 17153 9,828
Proceeds from exercise of share options ERER(EE OO E R EED 9,634 51l 0157/
Proceeds from bank and other loans B e | e E A E R | T 1,252,620 16 57/7/4518)
Repayment of bank and other loans EINERERE: [ ERER I A (1,464,614) (1,233,178)
Proceeds from bank advances [ T ] T D e

for discounted bills 234,378 -
Repayment of bank advances [EI= e E R B E EE R

for discounted bills (50,000) -
Payment of other financing costs (][] [l TR ] e [ (6,845) (11,658)
Dividends paid oooo (49,714) (36,847)
Interest paid EfiEl1 [ (159,031) (98,898)
Net cash flows from financing activities ERERL | O 00008 1,228,505 506,578




76

China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited Ann al Re_o 2014

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS
Ooooooo

Year ended 31 December 2014 00 0000000000000 O0O

2014 2013
ooooo ooooo
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
od ooooo ooooo
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND goooooooogoa
CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,844 198,129
Cash and cash equivalents at oooooboooboon
beginning of year 894,732 698,088
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net D OO00OO00O0O0O (103) (1,485)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATEND OO O0OO0OO0OO0OOO0OO0
OF YEAR 897,473 894,732
ANALYSIS OF BALANCESOF CASHAND (0O O0OO0OO0OOO0OO0O0O0O0OO
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances goooooao 24 901,417 894,732
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in gopooooooag
the statement of financial position oooooo 901,417 894,732
Bank overdrafts gooad 28 (3,944) _
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in oooobooobo
the statement of cash flows gooooo 897,473 894,732
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

oot

31 December 2014 000000000000

2014 2013
ogoooa ooooa
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
oo ooooo ooooo
NON-CURRENT ASSETS googo
Property, plant and equipment ooogooooo 14 14,878 15,287
Investments in subsidiaries gooooooo 17 1,900,333 1,120,039
Prepayment in advance ogooag 789 -
An available-for-sale equity investment oooooooo 19 11,878 11,838
Total non-current assets gooooon 1,927,878 1,147,164
CURRENT ASSETS gooog
Prepayments, deposits and gooooooo
other receivables gooooo 13 -
Pledged deposits oooog 24 27,035
Cash and cash equivalents ooooooan 24 88,244 6,631
Total current assets goooono 88,257 33,666
CURRENT LIABILITIES ooog
Other payables and accruals doooooooooo 26 37,112 16,129
Due to subsidiaries gooooooo 17 74,808 44,348
Interest-bearing bank loans googooo 28 959 945
Total current liabilities gooooo 112,879 61,422
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES oooooo (24,622) (27,756)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES O O0O0O0O00O0O 1,903,256 1,119,408
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ooooo
Convertible bonds [ e e 29 816,269 -
Senior notes oooag 30 542,822 -
Interest-bearing bank loans oooooo 28 4,202 522,681
Total non-current liabilities B A e R 1,363,293 522,681
Net assets B EEE] 539,963 596,727
EQUITY oo
Issued capital = B EEE a3 46,466 46,247
Reserves EHE 315 444,123 501,526
Proposed final dividend IR BB 12 49,374 48,954
Total equity oooo 539,963 596,727
Li Hong.eei S n Jinli
LFEND! K.
Director Director
oo ]
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

oo

31 December2014 000000000000

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in
Bermuda on 24 October 2003. The registered office of the Company
is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is located at
Unit 3108, 31st Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Center, 168-
200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) were principally engaged in the design,
manufacture, supply and installation of conventional curtain walls and
building integrated photovoltaic systems, as well as the manufacture
and sale of solar power products. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

In the opinion of the directors, the parent and the ultimate holding
company of the Company is Strong Eagle Holdings Limited, which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which comprise
standards and interpretations approved by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and International Accounting Standards
(“IASs”) and Standing Interpretations Committee interpretations
approved by the International Accounting Standards Committee that
remain in effect. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance relating to the preparation of financial statements, which
for this financial year and the comparative period continue to be those
of the predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance
with transitional and saving arrangements for Part 9 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts and Audit”, which are
set out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance. The
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for derivative financial instruments and conversion
rights of convertible bonds which have been measured at fair value.
These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

oo

31 December2014 000000000000

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolida ion

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2014. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between

members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control described in the accounting policy for
subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the
fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any
investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
earnings, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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Oooogd

31 December 2014 000000000000

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised standards and new
interpretation for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10, Investment Entities
IFRS 12 and IAS 27

Amendments to IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Amendments to IAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial
Assets
Amendments to IAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting
IFRIC 21 Levies
Amendment to IFRS 2 Definition of Vesting Condition*
included in Annual
Improvements 2010-2012
Cycle
Amendment to IFRS 3 Accounting for Contingent Consideration in
included in Annual a Business Combination
Improvements 2010-2012
Cycle

e Effective from 1 July 2014

Other than explained below regarding the impact of amendments
to IAS 36, the adoption of the above revised standards and new
interpretation has had no significant financial effect on these financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Oooodnd

31 December 201400 0000000000

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

The IAS 36 Amendments remove the unintended disclosure
requirement made by IFRS 13 on the recoverable amount of a cash-
generating unit which is not impaired. In addition, the amendments
require the disclosure of the recoverable amounts for the assets
or cash-generating units for which an impairment loss has been
recognised or reversed during the reporting period, and expand the
disclosure requirements regarding the fair value measurement for
these assets or units if their recoverable amounts are based on fair
value less costs of disposal. Disclosures of the recoverable amounts for
the Group'’s impaired cash-generating units are included in note 14 to
the financial statements.

2.3 NEW AND REVISED IFRSs AND NEW
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE
HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT
YET ADOPTED

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,
which have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

IFRS9 Financial Instruments*

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
and IAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to IFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
IFRS 12 and IAS 27 Exception?

Amendments to IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint

Operations®
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers®

2200000000000 0O0O0ODOODON
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Oooogd

31 December 2014 000000000000

2.3 NEW AND REVISED IFRSs AND NEW
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE
HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT
YET ADOPTED (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1
Amendments to IAS 16
and 1AS 38
Amendments to IAS 16
and IAS 41
Amendments to IAS 19
Amendments to IAS 27
Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle
Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle
Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

Disclosure Initiative?

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation’

Agriculture: Bearer Plants®

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions
Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements®
Amendments to a number of IFRSs!

Amendments to a number of [FRSs!

Amendments to a number of IFRSs?

. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for an entity that first adopts IFRSs for its annual financial
statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and therefore is not
applicable to the Group

In addition, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) will
affect the presentation and disclosure of certain information in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ending 31 December
2015. The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these changes.

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be

applicable to the Group is as follows:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Oooodnd

31 December2014 000000000000

2.3 NEW AND REVISED IFRSs AND NEW

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE
HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT
YET ADOPTED (Continued)

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9, bringing
together all phases of the financial instruments project to replace IAS
39 and all previous versions of IFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment and
hedge accounting. The Group expects to adopt IFRS 9 from 1 January
2018. The Group expects that the adoption of IFRS 9 will have an
impact on the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial
assets. Further information about the impact will be available nearer
the implementation date of the standard.

IFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is
recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more
structured approach for measuring and recognising revenue. The
standard also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and key judgements
and estimates. The standard will supersede all current revenue
recognition requirements under IFRSs. The Group expects to adopt
IFRS 15 on 1 January 2017 and is currently assessing the impact of
IFRS 15 upon adoption.

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 clarify the principle in IAS 16
and IAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of economic benefits that
are generated from operating business (of which the asset is part)
rather than the economic benefits that are consumed through the
use of the asset. As a result, a revenue-based method cannot be
used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may only be
used in very limited circumstances to amortise intangible assets. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The amendments are not
expected to have any impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group upon adoption on 1 January 2016 as the Group has not
used a revenue-based method for the calculation of depreciation of its
non-current assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES
S bsidia ies

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(a)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s profit or loss
to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The Company’s
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Fai .al e meas ' emen

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments and conversion
rights of convertible bonds at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.
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24000000000 DO0O

POLICIES (Continued)
Fai .al e meas - emen (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant

to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Im_ai men of non-financial asse s

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, construction
contract assets and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset

belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those

expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is

credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2400000000000
POLICIES (Continued)
Rela ed .a ies odn
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: goodooDoDooooooooooo
oooa
(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family (@) ODOODOOOOODODOOOd
and that person oooooDoooooooon
(i) has control or joint control over the Group; (i) gooonooooooo
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) ODOoOoOoDoDOoOooOoOoo
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the (i) DOooDoDoOooOoOooooo
Group or of a parent of the Group; oO00oOoO0oooooooo
od
or ad
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions (by ODOO0OO0DOODOODOOOOOO0
applies: ooo
(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same group; (i) oooooooooooa
oooooo
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other (i) E R PR E R E Rk w]
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the 2 o e A T L O
other entity); e P R T B
(=R E- EEEEEE EEEE]
(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same G e T ) o e 1
third party; e R e T e ]
(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other Gy R e o T S e e o ]
entity is an associate of the third entity; e R e e R

BHEHE ] 1Rk e )
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POLICIES (Continued)
Rela ed _a ies (Continued)

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies: (Continued)

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Po.e ; Aan and e ‘Ci,,men and de ecia ion

v
)

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Exp